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Richard Sr.? Skinner (son of John):

REV. RICHARD SKINNER SR. (1797-1882)
wl MARY SWOPE [1799-1844], married Nov, 18227 by Rev. Edmund Stitle?
CHILDREN:

1. NATHAN THOMPSON SKINNER [1822-1871] - ABIGAIL ANN ISZARD [1826 or

1827-1879]

2. RICHARD SKINNER JR [1823-1908] - ELIZABETH ANN CORSON [1828-1896]

3. JACOB SWOPE SKINNER [1825-1846]

4. MARY ANN SKINNER [1827-1834]

5. wl MARTHA SKINNER [1829-1854] - BRAZILLA W ABBOTT [1823-1904]

5. w2 MARY JANE SOUDER [1833-1913] - BRAZILLA W ABBOTT [1823-1904]

6. ANN SKINNER [1831-1850]

7. SARAH B SKINNER [1833-1917] - CHARLES C SOUDER [1827-1909], brother of

Brazilla Abbott’s second wife, Mary Jane Souder.

8. REBECCA SKINNER [1836- ] - WOOLSTON

9. MARY SKINNER [1839-1839]

10. THOMAS SKINNER [1839-1839]

11. FRANKLIN SKINNER [1842-1923] - SARAH AMANDA PATTEN [1850-1933]
w2 SARAH (Chester) BECKETT, widow [1807-1847], married 12/29/1845 by Reuv.
William Hanley of the Glassboro Methodist Episcopal Church. Her first husband was
Josiah Beckett [1807-1843].
w3 REBECCA ANN (CHEW) SHUTE, widow [1806-1859], married 8/31/1848 by A.
J. Truett, a Methodist minister at Bethel (Hurffville)
w4 MARY (SMITH) STRETCH, widow [1809-1882], married 9/1863
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Background

Richard Skinner was one of eleven children of John Skinner and Patience Hanisey, the
progenitors of most of the Skinners of South Jersey today.

Richard Skinner, in turn, also had eleven children. Richard married four times, but all of
the children were with his first wife Mary Swope. A sister of Mary married Richard’s
brother William Skinner of Mantua.

Five of the children of Richard and Mary died as children or young adults. The surviving
children were - eldest child Nathan T. Skinner, next eldest Richard Skinner Jr. and then
Martha Abbott, Sarah Souder, Rebecca Woolston and youngest child Franklin Skinner.

Franklin was a family historian who helped to preserve the details of the lives of his
parents and grandparents.

Mary Swope died in 1844, just two years after Franklin was born.
Purchase of Parent’s Lands at Pitman Grove and Richwood

1n 1821, 340 plus acres of land belonging to Richard’s father were put up for auction to
satisfy debts that the father had accumulated with the owners of the Carpenter Glass
factory (formerly Stangers Glass) in Glassboro. This was all of the father’s known land
holdings.

Much of the land, roughly 200-214 acres, was the father’s homestead at Pitman Grove
where John Skinner and wife Patience lived and farmed the land. The remainder of the
auctioned land — 140 acres, was at nearby Richwood.

The Gloucester County court system authorized the sheriff to seize all of the father’s
lands on June 21, 1820. An auctioning of the land was held at Woodbury, the county
seat, on February 10, 1821. Son Richard Skinner, at age 23, bid $1000 and was the
winning bidder of his father’s land. The 340 acres was conveyed to Richard a couple of
days later on February 13, 1821.

It is not known how Richard obtained the $1000 to purchase his father’s lands at a young
age. But the numerous real estate transactions he engaged in for the remainder of his life,
and his overall wealth, all began with the 340 acres he purchased at auction of his father’s
estate at age 23.

Richard’s parents were still alive at the time their land was seized. John Skinner, the
father, died February 9, 1824. Wife Patience lived longer, dying April 30, 1840.
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The father’s homestead at Pitman Grove consisted of 200-plus acres of land [maybe 214
acres], centered where the intersection of Main St. and Lambs Road is today, and
extending down to the old mill at the near end of Alcyon Lake. Most of this land had
been given to Richard’s father in 1811 by a relative named Thomas Taber. The Skinner
farmhouse itself was situated on Lambs Road.
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Quick Sale

In 1822, one year after purchasing his father’s land, Richard sold the entire Pitman Grove
parcel, consisting of 200-214 acres, to his brother-in-law Capt. Nathan Thompson,
husband of his sister Martha. Richard sold the parcel for $2000 — twice what he had paid
for all of his father’s lands the previous year. Nathan Thompson financed his purchase
with a mortgage from Richard.

Richard Skinner’s remaining lands were 140 acres at Richwood consisting of two parcels
- a 100 acre lot and a 40 acre lot. These Richwood lands were somewhere within an area
totaling 360 acres that is bordered by todays Rt. 322 to the north, Richwood/Barnsboro
Road (Rt. 609) to the west, Richwood/Aura Road (Rt. 667) to the east and Williamson
Lane to the south.

Richard’s land appears to have been situated largely along today’s Rt. 609, maybe
extending over to the back sides of the neighboring properties on Rt. 667.

Geography Lesson - Greenwich Township

All of the father’s lands purchased by Richard were located in Greenwich Township,
today referred to as ‘Old’” Greenwich Township. During the 1800’s, ‘Old” Greenwich
Township shrank in size as newer townships were created from it. By the 1840’s, a new
township of Harrison was created and encompassing the lands owned by Richard.
Today, Greenwich Township is a small fraction of the size that it once was, and is not
located near Richwood or Pitman Grove.
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Richwood and Pitman Grove, NJ Today

In 1821, Richard Skinner Sr. purchased his father’s lands at a sheriff’s sale while his father was still
living. The land consisted of 140 acres at Richwood and 200-214 acres at Pitman Grove that
extended down to Alcyon Lake. My guess as to the size & shape of these lands is shown in
GREEN. The Pitman Grove land is where the father had lived, raised his family and farmed the
land. The Pitman Grove land is identified as being the ‘Old Homestead’ in a newspaper article
written by Richard’s brother Franklin Skinner.

In 1822, Richard Sr. sold the Pitman Grove lands to his brother-in-law Capt. Nathan Thompson.

Richwood would not have been a community in the 1800’s were it not for two major road intersections
that date back to the early 1800°s. The western intersection is the confluence of today’s Rt. 609, Rt.
322 and Harrisonville Road. This intersection was called Five Points and was the central focal point
of the community. By the 1840’s, Francis Campbell was operating a well-known mercantile store at

this intersection, later owned by Frank Souder. Other businesses soon followed.

The eastern intersection is marked by the confluence of Rt. 635, Rt. 322 and Rt. 667. This intersection
was sometimes called CrossRoads.
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Close-Up Look at the Richwood Portion of Richard’s Land

Richard originally purchased 140 acres at Richwood consisting of two parcels — 40 acres and 100 acres
(based on the research of cousin Bill Skinner - my guess as to size & shape of the land).

In 1822, at the age of 25, Richard Skinner received a license to operate the White Horse tavern situated
on his land. It is not certain, but likely, that Richard was the founder of the tavern. Per his son

Franklin, Richard lived at the tavern. Skinner operated the tavern until 1827 when he underwent a
dramatic religious conversion and sold a plot of land and the tavern to others. The notorious tavern
continued to operate until 1844 and gave the nickname ‘Helltown’ to the area.

In 1860, the Methodist Church that stands today was built on today’s Rt. 609. The church cemetery,
located next to the church, is situated directly across the street from the former tavern site.

Richard bought and sold much land in the Richwood area, eventually purchasing multiple plots of land on
Rt. 667, and selling his father’s original holdings on Rt. 609.

Three public schools were built in Richwood. The first was the Clem’s Run School on today’s Rt. 609,
named after ‘Little Clements Run’, a nearby stream. The second was the Mount Pleasant School,
built in 1855 at the corner of today’s Rt. 322 and Rt. 667. The third was the Richwood Academy,
built across the street from the Mount Pleasant School, which it replaced in 1870. Richard provided
small lots of land for both of those schools. Richard’s son, Richard Junior, was a schoolteacher who

taught at both the Clems Run School and Mount Pleasant School. Richard’s eldest son, Nathan,
was a school trustee of the Mount Pleasant School. And Richard Senior taught church classes that
were held at the Mount Pleasant School, and possibly the Clems Run School in earlier years, until
the Richwood Methodist Church was built in 1860.
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By the 1840’s, Richard Skinner was living at the ‘Old Stone House’farm, the farmhouse being an old
landmark on the east side of Richwood/Aura Rd. (today’s Rt. 667). During Skinner’s residence
there, the farmhouse became known as ‘The Preacher’s House’. The ‘Old Stone House” was torn
down when a railroad was put thru the farm in the 1880°s. Many decades later, in the mid-1960’s, the
land was part of a farm owned by William Rusling Skinner, a grand-nephew of Richard.

In 1839, Richard purchased a parcel called the Cabin Run tract. 1n 1849, he sold this parcel to his son
Nathan T. Skinner. . The Cabin Run was a small stream that ran from the west side of the Cabin
Run farmhouse to the Little Clem’s Run stream. 100 years later (1960’s), the farm of George Reutter
contained some of this land
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Geography Lesson - Richwood

Richwood is just a small area. Even today, it consists largely of open, undeveloped land.
In the early 1800’s, this area of farmland had no name. From 1840 to 1870, this area was
usually called Mount Pleasant, but sometimes also went by the name of ‘Five Points’. In
1870, the Richwood Academy, a small school that would serve this area and the nearby
towns of Mullica Hill and Glassboro was built, and the area eventually took on the name
of Richwood.

The only reason for this farmland having a name at all was that this area was the location
of a confluence of early roads. Mount Pleasant had one intersection in which today’s Rt.
322, Rt. Rt. 609 and Harrisonville Rd. all came together. This intersection was usually
called Five Points and was considered to be the center of the community.

Just a short distance away, Point Pleasant had a second intersection in which today’s Rt.
322, Rt. 667 and Rt. 635 (Lambs Road) come together.

Early on, Rt. 609 was called ‘Landing Road’ as it ran south from Carpenters Landing
(Mantua Twp). Later, it was called Barnsborough Road. Rt. 667 was called the road to
Unionville. And Lambs Road was called ‘the road to Bethel’.

The White Horse Tavern

Richard Skinner operated a tavern called the White Horse on a portion of his father’s land
that he had purchased in the 1821 Sheriff’s sale.

The tavern was located on the east side of today’s Rt. 609, just south of Rt. 322. Today,
the Methodist church cemetery sits directly across the street (Rt. 609) from where the
White Horse Tavern once stood, providing some historical context.

The annual license application for the tavern refers to the tavern as being the White Horse
Inn Tavern, so Richard may have offered rooms for the night. Per his son Frankin,
Richard (and family) lived at the tavern site.

Richard operated the tavern from 1821 or 1822, when he was roughly age 25, until 1827.
Once source indicates that the tavern originally opened in 1818, so Richard may not have
been the original operator.

Richard closed the tavern in 1827 and sold a small plot of land that included the tavern
shortly thereafter. The notorious tavern was subsequently re-opened and operated until
1844, giving the sparsely settled farming area the nickname ‘Hell Town’.
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Richard Skinner’s White Horse Inn Tavern License Fee History
(from the files of cousin Virginia Minotty):

TAVERN PETITIONS - RICHARD SKINNER - Applicant
NAME OF TAVERN - WHITE HORSE INN
LOCATION - GREENWICH TOWNSHIP, GLOUCESTER COUNTY, N. J.,
1822 — License Granted (yes), Fee, $10.00 plus $2.62k paid
1823 Lic. granted (yes), Fee 10.00
1824 Lic. granted (yes), Fee 10.00
1825 Lic. granted (yes), 1825 Fee 10.00 plus 2.62k paid
1826 Lic. granted (yes), 1826 Fee 10.00 plus 2.62k paid
1827 Lic. granted (yes), 1827 Fee 10.00 plus 2.62k paid

Gloucester County Brigade, 1825

“At the age of twenty-eight in 1825, Richard Skinner was commissioned captain of the
Second Regiment of the Gloucester County Brigade, New Jersey Militia, in the days

when military training was obligatory.” [per son Franklin Skinner, Glasshoro Enterprise
newspaper, 2 Dec 1921]

Religious Conversion

In 1826, Richard began studying the Christian Advocate, a newspaper that had just begun
publication by the Methodist organization in New York City. In 1827, Richard
underwent a powerful conversion to Christianity.

“August 12, 1827, he was converted, in his own home opposite the present Richwood
Methodist Church cemetery” [Franklin Skinner, Glassboro Enterprise, 2 Dec 1921]

“Coming under conviction he arose in the night, with his wife, to pray. After a
struggle of two days he was powerfully converted. The next morning he brought forth
fruits, met for repentance by taking an ax and cutting down the sign and post and
forever ceasing to sell rum. He became not only a very joyous Christian but a
consistent and methodical man of God. His family was directed to rigidly observe the
Sabbath and they were constantly commended to God, morning and evening at the
family alter. The noon hour was made a time of personal religious profit for he

always retired for prayer and the devout reading of his Bible.”
[WS Barnhart writing a memoriam for Richard in the Christian Advocate, 8 April 1882]

Richard chopped down the sign of his tavern and decided to devote the remainder of his
life to a strict adherence to Christian teachings and practices. He raised his children in
like manner.
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The old White Horse Tavern was located in the little town of Richwood, NJ
at the site of today’s Richwood United Methodist Church Fellowship Hall at
111 Richwood Road, Mullica Hill, NJ 08062.

The tavern was located on a rectangular piece of land 280 feet (W-E) by
590 feet (N-S) on the east side of what was then called the Landing Road.
The Landing Road is now called Rt. 609 and Richwood Road. It has also
been known as the Barnsboro to Richwood to Elmer Road.

Fifty years ago, the grassy, open property on which the White Horse Tavern
had stood was used as the Richwood Athletic Fields which included a
softball field and a football field. The lower (southernmost) quarter of that
lot is still a grassy, open field today.

The northern boundary of the White Horse Tavern lot was approximately 75
yards or 225 feet south of today’s Route 322. The roughly 225 foot strip of
land between Rt. 322 and the White Horse Tavern lot is owned today by
Dunkin. A fence is located today at the dividing line between the Dunkin
property and the Church Fellowship Hall property. This fence appears to be
on the northern boundary of the old White Horse Tavern lot.

The Richwood United Methodist Church located at 104 Richwood Road,
Mullica Hill, NJ 08062 was built approximately1860 on a triangular piece of
land on the west side of the Landing Road opposite the lot where the White
Horse Tavern stood. The triangular church lot and the rectangular tavern lot
contained a total of 5.2 acres in 1828.

The Richwood United Methodist Church Cemetery today includes some
additional land on the west side of Richwood Road, and the church
property appears to extend south down the road as far as James S.
Stratton Lane, which intersects Richwood Road about 15-20 feet north of
the southern boundary of the old White Horse Tavern lot.

The southern and eastern boundaries of the old White Horse Tavern lot can
easily be seen today by looking east from where James S. Stratton Lane
intersects Richwood Road and observing the line of trees marking the
southern and eastern edges of the open, grassy field.

William H. Skinner  9/9/2024

Courtesy of cousin Bill Skinner

RSsr 11



RSsr 12

Sale of the White Horse

In 1828, Richard washed his hands of the White Horse tavern selling a 5 acre parcel that
included the tavern to a man named John Richards.

The 5 acre parcel sold by Richard consisted of land on the east side of Rt. 609 where the
tavern stood, plus land on the west side of Rt. 609. The portion of the tavern plot that
was west of Rt. 609 plus additional land owned by Richard north of the tavern plot were
purchased by Richard from the estate of Isaac Browning in 1825. The portion of the
tavern plot that was east of Rt. 609 was part of Richard’s initial purchase of his father’s
land at the Sheriff’s sale in 1821. Today, the tavern plot east of Rt. 609 is occupied by
the Church Fellowship Hall, directly south of Dunkin.

Following the sale of the tavern by Richard, the tavern was re-opened and developed
quite a reputation. The unnamed area that today is Richwood took on the name of Hell
Town as a result of the ‘outsiders’ and behavior that the tavern attracted.

The tavern finally closed in 1844 as a result of fire but was remembered for decades after
that. The construction of the Methodist church across the street from the old tavern site
in 1860 reminded people of the undesirable use that the land had once had.

Per the Woodbury Constitution, 6/14/1860, courtesy of cousin Bill Skinner -
“..., this place was notorious not so much for the wickedness of its inhabitants, as
for being the resort of persons from all parts of the country who assembled there
in large numbers and engaged in horse racing, gambling, duel fighting, rum
drinking and Sabbath breaking. ... The long frequented haunt known as the
White Horse Tavern at Clem’s Run has been broken up, its dingy walls have
crumbled to ruins. The old sink of pollution has ceased to send forth its streams
of moral corruption Upon the surrounding country.”

Clems Run School

Some time after his religious conversion, Richard joined Methodist classes that began to
be held at the Clems Run School, a public school located about a mile down Rt. 609 from
the site of the White Horse tavern.

The Clem’s Run School took its name from the ‘Little Clements Run’ stream that
intersects Rt. 609 in that area. Today, the town of Richwood has recreation fields where
the school once stood.

Richard had two sisters, Ann and Sarah, who also attended Methodist church classes at
Clem’s Run. Richard would later become a church class leader.
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Methodist Leader [per son Franklin Skinner, Glassboro Enterprise, 2 Dec 1921]

In 1828, Richard became licensed as a Methodist exhorter. In1832, he became licensed
as a preacher, immediately becoming a member of the local preachers association,
wherein he served fifty years, preaching in many sections of old Gloucester County.

As a minister, Richard traveled around the rural areas of Gloucester County leading
classes and services in communities not having an established Methodist church.

Mount Pleasant School

In 1854 or 1855, the residents of Mount Pleasant (Richwood) created the Mount Pleasant
School District with plans to build a new public school in addition to the existing Clem’s
Run School. This was at a point in time when towns were building numerous small
schools to advance public education and to provide schools within walking distance of
children.

In 1855, the town elected the following school trustees to oversee the school district and
building of the new school:

Elisha Heritage

William Heritage

Richard Skinner

Joseph Nicholson

Hiram Abbott (possible relation to Richard’s daughter Martha Abbott)

Nathan T. Skinner [eldest son of Richard Skinner]

Charles Souder [husband of Richard’s daughter, Sarah]

Per a deed dated 5 June 1855, Richard sold 33/100 of an acre of land for $70 to the
Trustees on behalf of the school. This land was located in the center of Mount Pleasant at
the intersection of ‘the road to Bethel’ (today’s Lambs Road) and the ‘Mullica Hill
Glassborough Road (todays Rt. 322). The Mount Pleasant School, a small one room
schoolhouse, was built on or near this land.

The Methodist classes that had been held at the Clem’s Run School were moved to the
new Mount Pleasant School. Richard Skinner was the leader of Methodist church classes
at Mount Pleasant.

“The new school-house ... ... .... another class was formed, with Richard Skinner, Sr.,
as leader. This was made a Sunday afternoon appointment, and in fair weather the

services were held in the beautiful grove surrounding the school-Aouse. ”
[History of Harrison Township, http://nj.searchroots.com/Gloucesterco/]

Richard Skinner’s eldest son, Richard Skinner Junior, was a school teacher by trade and
taught at both the Clem’s Run School and the newer Mount Pleasant School during his
lifetime.
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Richwood Academy

In 1870, the original Mount Pleasant schoolhouse was replaced by a larger building
named the Richwood Academy. This school was designed to be the public school for
students from as far away as the neighboring towns of Glassboro and Mullica Hill.

The original one room Point Pleasant Schoolhouse was sold and carried off to another
location, finally burning down in the 1900’s.

The Richwood Academy that replaced the old school was used for public school
education until the 1950’s and is still standing today The building is listed on both the
US and NJ Register of Historic Places.

Richwood Methodist Church

The Methodist religion finally had a permanent home in Richwood when a Methodist
Church was constructed in 1860. The church cemetery, next to the church, sits directly
across the street on Rt. 609 from where Richard’s White Horse Tavern once stood. The
tavern must have had quite a reputation:

‘About a month after the church was organized, an article in the Constitution, a
weekly paper then published in Woodbury, hailed the dawning of a brighter day for
the community because a church was to be erected opposite the place where the
“sink of pollution” (the White Horse Tavern) once stood. “Where sin abounded

grace shall much more abound,” the article predicted.’
[Per RichwoodUMCChurchHistory.html] —

There are no records that show that Richard, a nearby resident and Methodist preacher,
played any formal role in the creation or running of this church, though he likely had
some involvement.

Rev. Charles Souder, husband of Richard’s daughter Sarah, was listed as the primary
church Minister and Steward of this church in 1882.

“The stained glass window at the end of the hall in the Education Building is in
memory of Charles C. & Sarah B. Souder; This window was moved from the room
behind the sanctuary when the Education Building was erected” [richwoodchurch.org].

The stained glass windows would have been dedicated to the Souders when the
windows were installed in 1925 [installation date per Wikipedia].

The beautiful Methodist church is still standing today. The building was added to the
National Register of Historic Places in 1979 for its significance in architecture [Wikipedia]
And the church cemetery marks the spot on Rt. 609 where Richard Skinner’s White
Horse Tavern once stood, directly across the street!
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Methodist Elder

“In 1864, after thirty-two years service as a local preacher, he was ordained a local
elder, by Bishop Matthew Simpson, this the highest order afforded to laymen in the
Methodist Episcopal Church.” [per son Franklin Skinner, Glassboro Enterprise, 2 Dec 1921]

The Lands of Richard Skinner

Richard’s principal occupation was farming and his passion was preaching the Methodist
gospel and living a strict Christian life. But he also was involved in a large number of
real estate transactions during his life, His real estate holdings all began with the original
purchase of his father’s 340 acres of land at the sheriff’s sale back in 1821. His real
estate transactions enabled him to become charitable during his life, providing land and
farmhouse dwellings to most of his children.

Richard Skinner bought and sold many parcels of land at Richwood during his lifetime,
including land along Rt. 609, Rt. 667, Rt. 322 and Lamb’s Road. He also invested in the
neighboring town of Glassboro, where some of his children and grandchildren would
eventually migrate to.

Gifting

Richard provided land to each of his surviving children on the occasion of their
marriages.

The first marriage gift was 40-50 acres of land and a farmhouse on Rt. 609 to his son
Richard Skinner Jr. in 1846, on occasion of Junior’s marriage to Elizabeth Ann Corson.
Richard Jr., a school teacher, eventually left the world of farming and sold the parcel
back to his father in 1874. As a school teacher, Richard Jr. taught at both the Clem’s Run
School and the Mount Pleasant School. His public school students had included his
younger brother Franklin,

Richard gave eldest son Nathan T. Skinner land called the Cabin Run Tract on the west
side of Rt. 667 in 1849, which Richard had purchased in 1838. The Cabin Run Tract was
named after the Cabin Run - a stream that ran from the west side of the Cabin Run
farmhouse, across the farm and emptied into the ‘Little Clem’s Run’ stream.

Nathan was one of the first school principals of the Academy Street School on Academy

Street in the town of Glassboro, which was built about 1843. He was also among the first
group of trustees who were tasked with building the Mount Pleasant School at Richwood

in 1855.

Richard’s daughter Sarah Souder, wife of Rev. Charles C. Souder, was gifted land that
adjoined her father’s ‘Old Stone House’ farm. Her husband Charles was mentioned as
being the Minister and Steward of the Richwood Methodist Church in the year 1882.
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Richard’s daughter Martha Abbott married Brazilla Abbott in the 1840’s and was gifted a
substantial farm in 1849. The farm fronted on the west side Rt. 667 near the southern
border of Harrison Township with Clayton Township. Richard had purchased this land
from Richard and Abigail Cooper on December 26, 1846. Cooper had been using the
land for a timber business.

In 1854, Martha and Brazilla sold the land back to Richard Skinner, the same year in
which Martha prematurely died. In 1855, the following year, Brazilla Abbott, a widower,
married Mary Jane Souder, a sister to Rev. Charles C. Souder of the Richwood Methodist
Church. Charles was a husband to Sarah Skinner, another daughter of Richard Skinner.
By the 1870’s, Richard & 4™ wife Mary had made the farm their primary residence. This
was the homestead where Richard died in 1882.

Richard’s youngest son Franklin Skinner was born in 1842 - young enough to be a
grandson to Richard. Franklin was not married until 1873. Richard gifted land to
Franklin in 1865 after Franklin had completed three years of combat service in the Army
during the Civil War. Franklin was given a homestead that was said to be directly across
from Richard’s ‘Old Stone House’ farm. Deed records show his land to be on the west
side of Rt. 667, so across the street from the Old Stone House.

In 1874, Richard sold Franklin additional land adjoining the farm he gifted to Franklin in
1865. This 1874 transaction may have been a wedding gift to Franklin and his bride.

Both Franklin and his elder brother Richard Skinner Jr. served in the Civil War, though in
different Army units. Both were stationed near Appomattox when the War ended in
1865. Franklin detailed his War experiences in a poem presented to his brother Richard
Jr.in 1906. And he wrote another poem detailing his brother’s teaching skills, as
Franklin had been a public school student with his brother Richard as his teacher.

Richard’s youngest surviving daughter, Rebecca, opted for paid tuition at the Pennington
Seminary in lieu of a gift of land. This is the same seminary that her brother Richard Jr.
had graduated from. Rebecca later married Benjamin Woolston.
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Correct spelling of Brazilla Abbott, but wrong date of death [findagrave.com]
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Cabin Run Tract, 1838

The Cabin Run Tract was a 64 acre farm located on the west side of Rt. 667. It was
named after the Cabin Run - a stream that ran from the west side of the Cabin Run
farmhouse, across the farm and emptied into the ‘Little Clem’s Run’ stream. This farm
was purchased by Richard Skinner from Joseph C. Gill in 1838. Richard may have lived
on the farm after he purchased it. A century later, about half of this land was a part of the
George Reutter farm (mid-1960’s).

In 1849, Richard sold this farm, plus an additional 16 acres of land originally purchased
from his father’s sheriff’s sale back in 1821, as a gift totaling 83 acres to his eldest son
Nathan T. Skinner.

Per the research of cousin Richard Skinner, the Cabin Run Tract went from Richard
Moffett to Louisa H. Paul (1826) to Richard Skinner’s brother-in-law Nathan Thompson
(1828) to Charles C. Gill (1838) to Richard Skinner (1838) to Nathan T. Skinner (1849).

Glassboro, 1843

In 1843, Richard purchased 15 acres of land in the nearby town of Glassboro. Not a big
purchase, but this was a wise and early investment in a town that would become a vibrant
city in the second half of the 1800°s. Richard never resided on any of this Glassboro
land. The land was eventually subdivided into city lots of about %2 acre each, and most
was sold off, but one of Richard’s grandsons, Harry Skinner, would live and raise a
family on one of those lots.

The ‘Old Stone House’

By 1849, Richard was living on a farm on the east side of Rt. 667. The farmhouse itself
was known as the ‘Old Stone House’. This house was a well-known landmark on the old
road (Rt. 667) and predated Richard’s purchase of the property. During Richard’s
ownership of the property, the home was referred to as the “Preachers House”, and it
served as a frequent meeting place for Richard’s Methodist acquaintances in the mid-
1800’s.

In the 1960’s, the ‘Old Stone House’ was long gone, but the land was part of the William
Rusling Skinner farm (1863-1953) across Rt. 667 from the now (1965) George Reutter
farm. William Rusling Skinner, Jr. (1900-1967), of Dennisville, N. J. recalled that they
had used the old Stone house to store sweet potatoes. Per Rusling Jr. the farmhouse was
torn down when the railroad bed was put in. “The railroad has since been removed, but
you can still see where it was.”
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I have not located deed records pertaining to Richard’s purchase or sale of any land on
the east side of Rt. 667 where the ‘Old Stone House’ was located, but by 1861, this land
was owned by his son-in-law Rev. Charles C. Souder, a person with whom Richard did
many land transactions.

To Pittstown To Unionville
Excerpt from 1849 Map of Gloucester County [Library of Congress]

This map shows the Clems Run School and Francis Campbell’s mercantile store, one of the
earliest businesses in the area.

Richard is shown on the east side of Rt. 667 — this would be the ‘Old Stone House’ farm.

This map does not show a 40 acre lot on Rt. 609, between the lands of Carr and Campbell, that
Richard gifted to his son Richard Jr. in 1849.
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1890 Map, Richwood Area
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The ‘Old Stone House’ on the east side of Rt. 667 was torn down when the railroad was put in.

[pastmaps.com]
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1861 Map [Gloucester County Historical Society]

In 1861, Richard now owns two properties on the west side of Rt. 667. One of these properties
would be the Cabin Run property that Richard gifted to son Franklin Skinner in 1865. In the
1960’s, some of this land was part of the farm of George Reutter.

This map shows the 40 acres belonging to Richard Skinner Jr. on Rt. 609 that Richard Senior had
gifted to Richard Junior in 1849.
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Excerpt of 1876 Map, Harrison Township, Gloucester County
[Library of Congress]

The map shows that Richard Skinner has 40 acres on Rt. 609, which may be the original 40 acre
parcel he had purchased at the sheriff’s sale of his father’s lands in 1821. He gifted this land
to son Richard Junior in 1846, but Junior sold it back to Senior in 1874.

The map shows that Richard owned three parcels of land south of Rt. 322 fronting on Rt. 667.
The southern most parcel of 132 acres was the farm and land where Richard spent his final
years and where he contracted pneumonia and died. The farm was sold in 1886, four years

after his death.

The map shows the new Richwood Academy school, north of Rt. 322 along Lambs Road, which
was built in 1870. Richard sold land to the School District for the building of the new
school, and retained a small piece of land at the corner of Rt. 322 and Lambs Road as

shown. Richard had also provided land for the previous school house, the Mount Pleasant
School, which had been located on the opposite side of Rt. 667 from the newer academy.
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Where Did Richard Live

Richard had significant landholdings on Rt. 609, Rt. 322, Rt. 667 and Lambs Road in
Harrison Township, formally Greenwich Township, as well as many city plots in nearby
Glassboro.

In terms of where he actually lived - he lived at the site of his tavern on Rt. 609, per his
son Franklin. That would have been from 1821 until the sale of the tavern site in 1828.
In the 1830’s and early 1840’s, he appears to have lived on Rt. 609 on the remainder of
his lands surrounding the tavern site.

1830 Census

The census shows Richard living in Greenwich Twp. In 1828, he had sold a 5 acre plot of
land that included the site of his former White Horse tavern. But he still had land on 3 of the
4 sides of that plot on Rt. 609 which is where he was likely residing.

Richard’s widowed mother, Patience Skinner, was listed a few persons away from him in the
census, and was probably living with him.

Some of the nearby families include familiar names — Thomas Simpkins (Rt. 609) and further
away, Richard’s brother William Skinner, who lived in northern Harrison Twp.

1840 Census

Richard was living in Greenwich Twp. Again, he appears to be living on his lands on Rt. 609
near the site of his former tavern.

Familiar nearby names on the census, many who lived along Rt. 609 — Conrad Ayres, Joseph
Stout, Saml Bartholomew, James Lippincott, Charles French, Isaac Dilkes, Skinner, Richard
Clark, Josiah Beckett Jr., Thomas Simpkins, Frances A. Campbell, William Madara, Wm
Skinner (brother to Richard), Isaac Moffett, John & Joseph Madara.
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Sometime after the 1840 census, Richard moved to the ‘Old Stone House’ farm on the
east side of Rt. 667. This is where he resided at the time the 1849 map of Gloucester
County was put together. He likely lived at that farm into the 1850’s.

1850 Census - Richard is missing from the census.

1855 State Census

The census shows lists the family of Richard next to the family of his son Richard Jr. That
means that Richard and wife were living with their son at his farm on Rt. 609, or Richard
and his son were simply neighbors.

The numerous and ever-changing tracts of land owned by Richard, including many tracts
with farmhouses makes for a convoluted situation. By 1855, Richard owned land up and
down Rt. 667 and may still have owned a parcel on Rt. 609. In the 1850’s, he sold a tract to
his son (not officially recorded), so that Richard Jr.’s farm on Rt. 609 then extended all the
way to Rt. 667. So father and son sharing the same roof or simply neighbors — impossible to
tell.

All of these lands would now have been in Harrison Township, which was created in 1844
from a portion of Greenwich Twp.

1860 Census

Richard’s situation had changed. His third wife, Rebecca Ann Shute, whom he married in
1848, had died 1859. The 1860 census shows that Richard was a ‘Gentleman’ now living in
the household of John Beckett. They appear to be living to the west of Rt. 667 and Rt. 609.
There are no other Skinner family members living with Richard.

The census shows that Richard valued his real estate holdings at $13000 and his personal
wealth at $1000. Quite a large number compared to others in the census.
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1870°s & 1880’s - New Homestead

By the census of 1870, Richard Skinner has married his 4™ wife and appears to be living
on one of his properties on the west side of Rt. 667, probably a small tract that sat at the
southwest corner of Rt. 322 and Rt. 667.

1870 Census

The 1870 census shows Richard as a farmer living at Harrison Twp. He is age 73, his 4"
wife Mary is age 59 and there is a 12 year old school child named Lawrence Doughtly living
with them.

Richard and family are listed in the census between two families that lived on Rt. 322 — the
family of William Justice and the family of Wm E. Heritage. For that reason, Richard may
have been living on a property that he owned on Rt. 322, at the intersection with Rt. 667 —
see 1861 Map.

The census shows that Richard valued his real estate holdings at $23000 and his personal
wealth at $1400, a larger level of wealth than most others in that neighborhood.

1880 Census

The 1880 census shows Richard as a farmer living at Harrison Twp.

Richard with his wife Mary and four other persons are now living on a 100+ acre farm on
the west side of Rt. 667 at the southern border of Harrison Twp. They would have moved
into this farm sometime in the 1870’s.

This farm was largely aligned with the farm that Richard had gifted to his daughter Martha
at the occasion of her marriage to Brazilla Abbott in 1849. The Abbotts sold it back to
Richard in 1854, the year that Martha died.

Richard Skinner and 4™ wife wife Mary were living on this farm when Richard died in 1882.
After his death, the Executors of his estate sold the farm in 1886.
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Glassboro Methodist Episcopal Church

Richard Skinner does not appear in the records of the Methodist Church of Richwood,
though his son-in-law Charles C. Souder was a minister there.

Richard and his wife were members of the Methodist Episcopal church of nearby
Glassboro, beginning in the 1860°’s, where many of their friends and family were
members.
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Mary, wife of Richard Skinner Sr.;
Also shown — Richard’s youngest brother Frank Skinner
and Richard’s grandson William H. ‘Harry’ Skinner
[1860 Glassboro Methodist Church Records; familysearch.com]
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Richard Skinner Sr. or Jr.
Also shown — Dr. Samuel Luffbury, Frank Thoman, and William and wife Permelia Corson,

William Corson having a sister Elizabeth who married Richard Skinner Jr.
[1862 Glasshoro Methodist Church Records]
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Richard & Mary Skinner w/Dr. Samuel Luffbury as class leader
[1866, Glassboro Methodist Church Records]
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Rev. Richard & Mary Skinner
Their grandson Harry Skinner & wife Lizzie on the same page
[1880, Glassboro Methodist Church Records]
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Death of Richard and 4" Wife Mary

Richard died in 1882 after a brief bout with pneumonia. The personal accounts of his
death indicate that he died at home at his farm which was located on the west side of Rt.
667.

Six months later, 4™ wife Mary died as well:

Mary Skinner - “Died after 4 months illness, a happy, holy faithful servant of God”
[Methodist Church records].
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Records of the Glassboro Methodist Episcopal Church, 1880’s
“Mary Skinner, Died Sept 8, 1882, after 4 months illness,
A happy, holy, faithful servant of God.”
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Franklin Skinner, writing in the Glassboro Enterprise newspaper, 2 Dec 1921,
about his father Richard Skinner Sr.:

He had a generous heart, full of love for God and his fellow man. His house was known
as the preacher's home. The country was thinly settled, and regular preaching not as
frequent as desired. Rev. Charles Heisley related to me a few years ago when he was
nearly eighty:
"As a young man, on my first appointment, | was assigned to Gloucester Circuit. |
had no means by which to travel over this large circuit, -so | hunted up your father,
who was then living in the Stone House. | told him my plight and asked him for
his advice. He (Mr. R. Skinner) said he had a sulky which he could spare, and
gave me that, and a horse and harness, and sent me on my way, rejoicing."

His children were brought up in the fear of the Lord, and on Sundays they attended
church instead of running around the neighborhood, learning evil ways. It was his daily
habit, when at home, after dinner, to read a chapter in the Bible, on his knees, and he
(thus) read it through nearly seventeen times. His continued devotion to the cause of
religion until he reached an advanced age, caused him to be called Father Skinner.

He was active in business, and in serving the lord. .....

The circumstances of his death. Needing some timber for building repairs he cut down a
tree, about 12 inches across, and after trimming it up he sat down in perspiration from his
exertion. He thus contracted a chill and hurrying home to bed, pneumonia speedily set in
and in three days he passed away. Just before he died he requested his son, Franklin, to
sing, but before he could start singing the aged father's spirit had taken its everlasting
flight. The Rev. W. S. Barnhart, then pastor at Glassboro, preached the funeral sermon
from the text: "A prince has fallen, today, in Israel.” In the local preachers' association
minutes, dated April 8, 1882, is inscribed a memorial to him, in which appears a graphic
account of his remarkable conversion.”
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Memoriam to Richard Skinner By W.S. Barnhart, Pastor of the Glassboro
Methodist Church, The Christian Advocate, 1882:

“Rev. Richard Skinner, Sr. of Glassborough, N. J. was a prince in Israel and worthy of an
extended fame. He was great in physical power, mental energy and business diligence.
He was full of nobility and generosity, blessed with a remarkable Christian experience
and a deep religious devotion, constant and earnest in labor, and at last left the world in
glorious triumph.”

“It is hard to conceive of a man being more faithful in all religious duties than was Father
Skinner. No wonder he never lost the sense of his acceptance with God, and no wonder
he lived to see all his family converted and gather into the church, while some of them
went to Heaven before him.

“During his last sickness he said that he had not been sick enough to have a physician in
sixty years and now, having long desired to be with Jesus, he was ready to go. He did not
wait long, he found pneumonia rapidly doing its work. Calling for his Bible, he pressed it
to his lips and telling those about him how he had read it through on his knees nearly 17
times, cried "Precious Bible, blessed Book™ and shouted the praises of God. He was
conscious to the end and saying to his son, (Franklin) "Sing," his Spirit, absent from his
body, was present with the Lord.

His memory is a rich legacy to his children and to the Church of God.”
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Old Methodist Cemetery, Glassboro, NJ

Photo taken in the 1990°s by Dave Skinner
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Disposition of Richard’s Property:

Richard named his youngest son Franklin Skinner and his “close and dear friend
Solomon H. Stanger, Jr.”” as Executors of his Will. His lands were sold in bits and pieces
to willing buyers, and the process took years to accomplish.

Some of Richard’s children appear to have inherited land as a result of his Last Will &
Testament. Daughter Rebecca Woolston received a % acre city plot - 351 Main St. in
Glassboro. And daughter Sarah Souder received 347 Main St. Both daughters quickly
re-sold their inherited lands.

Richard Skinner Jr. purchased 337 Main Street and a neighboring duplex — 343/345 Main
Street from the Executors. 337 Main Street would serve as home to Richard Jr and later,
his son Harry Skinner and children, well into the 20" century.

The last of the land to be sold was the 102 acre farm where Richard had lived and died.
This land was sold at a public auction in 1886 to a man named Henry Albright. This land
had been part of a larger parcel that Richard had gifted to his daughter Martha Abbott,
land that Martha and Brazilla Abbott had sold back to Richard in 1854. Richard’s farm
also included a 40 acre parcel that Richard had purchased from Benjamin Wilson in
1858. Richard’s executors sold a portion of the land to Charles Williamson (the
namesake of Williamson Lane) in 1885, and auctioned off the final 102 acre farm to
Albright in 1886.

The advertisement for the farm indicates that the farmhouse was nearly new, 2 % stories
with 7 rooms. The farm also included a large barn, a Crib House (secondary house) and
many out-buildings.
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- EXECUTORS’ PEREMPTORY SALE
—QF—

REAL ESTATE!

ESTATE OF RICHARD SKINNER, DEC'D.

Pursuant to the last Will and Testament of
Richard Skinner, late of Gloucester county, de-
ceased, will be exposed at Public Sale, on

SATURDAY, JANUARY 9th, 1856,

At the hotel of Jesse E. Reeves, in Glassboro,
N. J., between the hours of 12and 5 oclock, to
wit, at 2 o'clock P. M., all that Farm and Planta-
epaied tois T, sibuate. Ty 804 Kol oo T

e, te, on the
west side of the public m“{ilng from Lang-
ley’s corner to Five Points, called the Unionville
road, in Harrison township,

Containing 102 88-100 Acres,

More or less. The land is in good state of culti-
vation, with a stream of water running through
it, and zﬁood apple orchard thereon.

The buildings consist of a comfortable Qu-norg
Dwelling 7 rooms, nearly new; large Barn, Cri
House, and all other necessary out-buildings.

It is a very desirable p rty for any person
who intends to make tsr:m their busin or
for investment, being in a healthy Gl:ixh-
borhood, handy to church &ec.

periy belon m'“”aﬁ o€ fuia il phoons culi e
pre ore e, on
%O‘Dnm%g',at Glassboro —— "

Oondltio:hewbyhlch will be liveral, made known

)_,‘on day of
: : BOLOMON H. STANGER, Jr.,
| Now, 23,1885.  Ex, of Richard Skinner, dec'd

i ]
Dec 31, 1885, Gloucester County Democrat

REAL ESTATE.

Saturday, Jan. 3, near Five Points, known as the
Richard Skinner farm, by Frank Skinner and
Solomon H. Stanger, Executors. .

1
Jan 14, 1886, Gloucester County Democrat

“Farm and Plantation where the said Richard Skinner lived and departed this life”
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Changing Times

As people left the farms in the 1870’s, they traded their farmland for small %2 acre home
lots in towns like Glassboro, the fastest growing town in Gloucester County. But the
changing times that saw people and jobs move to towns like Glassboro did not end there.
By the 1900’s, the blue collar jobs associated with industrialization became consolidated
in the larger cities of Camden and Philadelphia, so some of Richard’s great/grandchildren
of the early 20" century left the Glasshoro area of South Jersey behind.

And so, the descendants of Richard Skinner took divergent paths in life — some took labor
jobs in Philadelphia by the early 1900’s, some developed their own skilled occupations in
South Jersey, and a few continued farming into the 1960’s and 1970’s.

Richard’s Legacy

Richard Skinner Sr. “was a prince in Israel and worthy of an extended fame. He was great
in physical power, mental energy and business diligence. He was full of nobility and
generosity, blessed with a remarkable Christian experience and a deep religious devotion,
constant and earnest in labor, and at last left the world in glorious triumph.”

[W. S. BARNART, pastor of the Glassboro Episcopal Methodist Church, THE CHRISTIAN
ADVOCATE, 8 April 1882]

Due to his wide circle of family and friends, strong character and relative wealth and
landholdings, he was a game-changer in the Skinner family and a larger than life role
model in his family and community.
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Exhibit 1

W. S. BARNART, pastor of the Glassboro Episcopal Methodist Church, writing a
memoriam for Richard Skinner, FROM THE CHRISTIAN ADVOCATE, 8 April 1882
(from the files of Virginia Minotty dated 3/17/1980):

REV. RICHARD SKINNER, SR. 1797-1882

Rev. Richard Skinner, Sr. of Glassborough, N. J. was a prince in Israel and worthy of an
extended fame. He was great in physical power, mental energy and business diligence. He
was full of nobility and generosity, blessed with a remarkable Christian experience and a
deep religious devotion, constant and earnest in labor, and at last left the world in glorious
triumph.

We may give the prominent dates of his life. Born July 11, 1797, began taking the Christian
Advocate in 1826, converted August 12, 1827, licensed to exhort in 1828, and to preach in
1832, ordained an elder in 1864 by Bishop Simpson and died near Glassborough, N. J
March 12, 1882.

Before becoming a Christian he lived in Helltown [KDS note - Richwood] and kept a tavern.
Coming under conviction he arose in the night, with his wife, to pray. After a struggle of
two days he was powerfully converted. The next morning he brought forth fruits, met for
repentance by taking an ax and cutting down the sign and post and forever ceasing to sell
rum. He became not only a very joyous Christian but a consistent and methodical man of
God. His family were directed to rigidly observe the Sabbath and they were constantly
commended to God, morning and evening at the family altar. The noon hour was made a
time of personal religious profit for he always retired for prayer and the devout reading of
his Bible.

It is hard to conceive of a man being more faithful in all religious duties than was Father
Skinner. No wonder he never lost the sense of his acceptance with God, and no wonder he
lived to see all his family converted and gather into the church, while some of them went to
Heaven before him.

During his last sickness he said that he had not been sick enough to have a physician in sixty
years and now, having long desired to be with Jesus, he was ready to go. He did not wait
long, he found pneumonia rapidly doing its work. Calling for his Bible, he pressed it to his
lips and telling those about him how he had read it through on his knees nearly 17 times,
cried "Precious Bible, blessed Book" and shouted the praises of God. He was conscious to
the end and saying to his son, (Franklin) "Sing". His Spirit, absent from his body, was
present with the Lord.

His memory is a rich legacy to his children and to the Church of God.

W. S. BARNART
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Exhibit 2

Article from the Glassboro Enterprise newspaper, dated December 2, 1921, in on-going
column entitled **Our History Club™, compiled by John Downer, based upon information
provided by Franklin Skinner (son of Richard Skinner); newspaper from the files of cousin
Virginia Minotty:

REVEREND RICHARD SKINNER b. July 11, 1797 d. Mar. 12, 1882

The Reverend RICHARD SKINNER was born on the old homestead, near now Alcyon Park
[KDS — Pitman Grove], July 11, 1797, dying at Glassboro, March 12, 1882, aged nearly
eighty-five years. At the age of twenty-eight, in 1825, he was commissioned captain of the
Second Company of the First Regiment of the Gloucester County Brigade, New Jersey
Militia, in the days when military training was obligatory.

[KDS note — skipping over several paragraphs of incorrect information]

August 12, 1827, he was converted, in his own home opposite the present Richwood Methodist
Church cemetery; the next year licensed as a Methodist exhorter, and in 1832 licensed as a
local preacher, immediately becoming a member of the local preachers association, wherein
he served fifty years, preaching in many sections of old Gloucester County, including a
number of points that are now strong churches. In 1864, after thirty-two years service as a
local preacher, he was ordained a local elder, by Bishop Matthew Simpson, this the highest
order afforded to laymen in the Methodist Episcopal Church. His youngest son, Franklin
Skinner writes:

He had a generous heart, full of love for God and his fellow man. His house was known as the
preacher's home. The country was thinly settled, and regular preaching not as frequent as
desired. Rev. Charles Heisley related to me a few years ago when he was nearly eighty:

"As a young man, on my first appointment, | was assigned to Gloucester Circuit. | had
no means by which to travel over this large circuit, -so | hunted up your father, who was
then living in the Stone House. I told him my plight and asked him for his advice. He
(Mr. R. Skinner) said he had a sulky which he could spare, and gave me that, and a
horse and harness, and sent me on my way, rejoicing."

His children were brought up in the fear of the Lord, and on Sundays they attended church
instead of running around the neighborhood, learning evil ways. It was his daily habit, when
at home, after dinner, to read a chapter in the Bible, on his knees, and he (thus) read it
through nearly seventeen times. His continued devotion to the cause of religion until he
reached an advanced age, caused him to be called Father Skinner.
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He was active in business, and in serving the lord. When his children married he gave each of
them a farm of no mean dimension, beginning with Richard, the first married; then Nathan;
then Martha; then Sarah; Rebecca, instead of a farm, preferred a higher education, and took
a course at Pennington Female College and graduated there. Franklin, after his three years
service in the Army, during the Civil War, was given the homestead opposite the Stone
House Farm. The Stone House was a noted landmark, for many years, as also was the Big
Pine, in the road leading from the Stone House to Barnsboro.

The circumstances of his death. Needing some timber for building repairs he cut down a tree,
about 12 inches across, and after trimming it up he sat down in perspiration from his
exertion. He thus contracted a chill and hurrying home to bed, pneumonia speedily set in and
in three days he passed away. Just before he died he requested his son, Franklin, to sing, but
before he could start singing the aged father's spirit had taken its everlasting flight. The Rev.
W. S. Barnart, then pastor at Glassboro, preached the funeral sermon from the text: "A
prince has fallen, today, in Israel.” In the local preachers' association minutes, dated April 8,
1882, is inscribed a memorial to him, in which appears a graphic account of his remarkable
conversion.

(The above printed in the Glassboro Enterprise, December 2, 1921.)
8/10/1977/VEM
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Exhibit 3

Article from the Glassboro Enterprise newspaper, dated Nov 25, 1921, in on-going column
entitled "*Our History Club', compiled by John Downer, based upon information provided
by Franklin Skinner (son of Richard Skinner); from the files of cousin Virginia Minotty:
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Exhibit 4
Richard Skinner’s White Horse Inn Tavern (from the files of cousin Virginia Minotty):

TAVERN PETITIONS - RICHARD SKINNER - Applicant

NAME OF TAVERN - WHITE HORSE INN

LOCATION - GREENWICH TOWNSHIP, GLOUCESTER COUNTY, N. J.,

Fee, $10.00 plus $2.62k paid - 1822 Lic. granted (yes) — 1822

Fee 10.00 - 1823 Lic. granted (yes) - 1823 Fee 10.00 - 1824 Lic. granted (yes) — 1824

Fee 10.00 plus 2.62k paid - 1825 Lic. granted (yes) - 1825 Fee 10.00 plus 2.62k paid - 1826
Lic. granted (yes) — 1826

Fee 10.00 plus 2.62k paid - 1827 Lic. granted (yes) - 1827

Note/VEM: This White Horse Inn was located on the EImer-Richwood Rd. across from where
the Richwood Methodist Church now stands. This shows that RICHARD SKINNER
operated this tavern during the years 1822 to 1827. In 1827 he was converted to the
Methodist way of life and gave up the tavern business and became a preacher or local
exhorter.

The above information was gathered by Mrs. Ruth Murphy Gottshall, of Richwood., N. J. and
Virginia Minotty, of Pitman, N. J.

8/10/1977/VEM.
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Exhibit 4b
(prepared by cousin William H. “Bill” Skinner)

e o fegspbp e
begi™ . i Ztiite Hovse Zavers loT,
e fre place <f Pugiearg

here

-{-‘i‘v:f- 76:.5_054:7(0.{' Aiue
Soutt < drctaace of
7;4:!:‘0: @uel 75 frekks
o 472 fee# , Flreu

second = 1:25° West of Frue
South a drisfcreee of
8 clrcrrers et 73 Somks
oir 390 Feef , Ffhoun

fh/'n.f - 7E6.5° o f of Frrue
Noitty e disheuee SF
Uf chrcthes Comet 25 {lenhks
o 280 foef to a post
oV ;fbnc o Flee cresclelle
of flea Lcu«(r‘-cj I?oad)
Ftron

Locrte - 65 west of Frue
Nortl, « disfource of
G ctiases wred SO Limks
oF 627 teet fo Fhe
ffa::e of be?;",“,'.,f.

cine charn = 66 £+

one chaiu = oo lrwks

Ne This /s the layowut of fhe 5 acve Whife Hovrse Tavern lof rn Fodeys
Richwooct which W«'J'Fttrf'ofa 700 acre pl’ece of forad owired by Tobrer T,
auet Pattence Skityer etertil 13 Fi'—év«uary 182 ewbhreu Fhlx /a.{m’ cwvas
bought by Rickavrd shicasr al fhe Sheriffs salc B e e L il

T s White fforse Taveru fof was sold 6, /Q"'C4ffb"'¢f Skiewer fo Jobha R"l;ft:'c(f
25 Februaary /828 ¢ Thae trbsite fforre Tave zea {tuhfch wers ‘Vﬁr%’rzy ::f:: : o
ou fhis pPo ~fofoa of Tobe 7. SKruwerys /A:tcf oo 1 EFE) mercle ese
valuable piece of properfy af Slhat Elerme .
Thie dezd pecords Faaf @ ofvite Jo tHhe enidldle <F fte |Z(M(ll:ﬂ'f,£¢-
omne of bur corners et Fhe p;'ap-‘u-;(r . féf Carpeaters l;a,,,‘{.,'- . Reoad
Hrvowgh Bavarbore and on To Cavpentars Aau:_’r«f Concio Plavwten) bs' cmtled
Firz B aversborvs Road /'hé Iai&z{deed: or 73;/:;7 PR called RE. EOG -~ Fhe E e
,"c/n.m:h'a( Bee vinsbope Rel Y
.;';1,_5 U) aencl/. C,Z::d",'r slee cvn Pﬂ‘f':*vf ﬂhoa fhe -"“‘ﬂ‘hwe)‘{ & veten of 4‘"'4‘ o
P',-gfve,wlx. rhe vroad reas qbeedt I Coff Frue Rortis oedd So utl fcda”f;yébth
‘u;‘f‘ as I‘)‘ ({I‘d J'I. 71828 -
3 Vou'ltl notice smeck of Fhis S acves wa:"r"a Fre stape oF ave alprost perfect
— r-e,cfaqg/'e East of fle road wh{c/' /5 brevy cfose o Fhe St il ik POy
Richiewood Afhfefic Frelds oppo-l‘,’k Flre Ate FlrodrisHF Chuvele ered “meﬁa—y 'fodar,
Ril of Flars [and Fast of fhe Louding Read was Survewsided by Shinuers oftics [aiet
e o B e A R i A
The Witr Ovse Tavera Sotebhow biavrney fo Fir e ' ; ) S
wes tmock appreciatal by tmost of fle rey birks; f:ni : ;‘f‘:‘; &:.:'f/f:,,:: @y evef wtich

B Y Skbee e ilf22 fo2

‘,‘(” markedd



RSsr 43

Exhibit 4b (continued)

The old White Horse Tavern was located in the little town of Richwood, NJ
at the site of today’s Richwood United Methodist Church Fellowship Hall at
111 Richwood Road, Mullica Hill, NJ 08062.

The tavern was located on a rectangular piece of land 280 feet (W-E) by
590 feet (N-S) on the east side of what was then called the Landing Road.
The Landing Road is now called Rt. 609 and Richwood Road. It has also
been known as the Barnsboro to Richwood to EImer Road.

Fifty years ago, the grassy, open property on which the White Horse Tavern
had stood was used as the Richwood Athletic Fields which included a
softball field and a football field. The lower (southernmost) quarter of that
lot is still a grassy, open field today.

The northern boundary of the White Horse Tavern lot was approximately 75
yards or 225 feet south of today’s Route 322. The roughly 225 foot strip of
land between Rt. 322 and the White Horse Tavern lot is owned today by
Dunkin. A fence is located today at the dividing line between the Dunkin
property and the Church Fellowship Hall property. This fence appears to be
on the northern boundary of the old White Horse Tavern lot.

The Richwood United Methodist Church located at 104 Richwood Road,
Mullica Hill, NJ 08062 was built approximately1860 on a triangular piece of
land on the west side of the Landing Road opposite the lot where the White
Horse Tavern stood. The triangular church lot and the rectangular tavern lot
contained a total of 5.2 acres in 1828.

The Richwood United Methodist Church Cemetery today includes some
additional land on the west side of Richwood Road, and the church
property appears to extend south down the road as far as James S.
Stratton Lane, which intersects Richwood Road about 15-20 feet north of
the southern boundary of the old White Horse Tavern lot.

The southern and eastern boundaries of the old White Horse Tavern lot can
easily be seen today by looking east from where James S. Stratton Lane
intersects Richwood Road and observing the line of trees marking the
southern and eastern edges of the open, grassy field.

William H. Skinner  9/9/2024
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ternoon next to plear the oroulid on whxch

the Chureh shall be erecled

Pc.wlvul That;a vote of thanl.s be and

hereby are t.endgred to the Ghairian and
Secretary of thig meeting for.the services
they bave rendered us; o
R(aol;,rd Thatwe hereby. réquest the
'Seerctary to ﬂqn.d a copy of the proceedings
of fht&meeung to.the ¢ Woodlivry Consti-
tu!lon and alsoto the “ Clous ester County
Times” for, puhl;cauon A
After the: adaption of the. nf‘oreaaxd Res-
olutxens the. meqtmg adjourned. ¢
v oo i ATWOOD, bccretm y

O

'»-_’<._____._ —

The  following
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Exhibit 5

HISTORY OF HARRISON TOWNSHIP, GLOUCESTER COUNTY, NEW JERSEY
Information located at http://nj.searchroots.com/Gloucesterco/:

On a web site about Gloucester County, New Jersey, maintained by Janice Brown; text
transcribed by Janice Brown from the source noted below -
Information from: History of the Counties of Gloucester, Salem, and Cumberland, New
Jersey with Biographical Sketches of their Prominent Citizens, by Thomas Cushing,
M.D., and Charles E. Sheppard, Esq.; Philadelphia: Everts & Peck, 1883; Press of J.B.
Lippincott & Co.

CHAPTER XLIIL
TOWNSHIP OF HARRISON
Page 243-252

Geographic and Descriptive--This township was taken from Greenwich and Woolwich
townships ins 1844 and named Spicer, in honor of one of the early settlers of Mullica Hill,
but only retained the name for about a year, when it was changed to Harrison, in honor of
Gen. William Henry Harrison, tenth President of the United States. Ex-Judge Jacob Harvey
and William Haines, both practical surveyors, ran the division line, assisted by the township
committees.

The northeastern portion of the township is a little hilly, while the rest is level or gently
undulating. There is in this township a variety of soil, all of which is susceptible of a high
state of cultivation, and is very productive of vegetables and garden truck. The township
contains, including South Harrison township, an area of twenty-four thousand and seventy-
two acres of land. It is one of the most extensive and populous townships of the county,
peopled by an industrious and thrifty class of farmers. Its farms and residences are among
the neatest in Southern New Jersey.

The township is bounded on the northeast by Mantua, and southeast by Clayton township, on
the south by Salem County, on the southwest by Woolwich, and northwest by Greenwich
township.

Harrison is watered along its southerly border by Oldman's Creek and its tributaries. The north
and south branches of Raccoon Creek and their numerous tributaries water the northern half
of the township.

FIVE POINTS--This is a small hamlet in the eastern part of the township, so named from the
number of roads concentrating and forming the points or corners. There is another locality
of the same name farther east, both on the Mullica Hill and Glassboro road.

At the eastern points, John Heritage built a blacksmith shop in 1858. He was succeeded by the
present blacksmith, Charles Jenkins in 1863, and in 1879 Mr. Jenkins built his present
wheelwright shop. The district school-house is near Mr. Jenkin's shop. At the western, or
Five Points proper, there is a store by Frank Souders, who succeeded F.A. Campbell in the
mercantile business, and also keeps the post-office. Mr. Campbell was the pioneer merchant
at this place. Here is also the blacksmith-shop of Robert McKeighan, who located here in


http://nj.searchroots.com/Gloucesterco/

RSsr 46

1874. Leonard S. Pancoast is the Five Points wheelwright. Rulon Hall, a small hall for
public meetings was built in 1877 by Equire Rulon. Here is located also the Mount Pleasant
Episcopal Church.

This locality was formerly known as "*Hell Town," from the fact of the once celebrated
"White Horse Tavern™ being located here, and nearly on the site now occupied by the
Methodist Episcopal Church.

In the old "*White Horse™ days it was rather an isolated locality, just suited for the
gathering of a class of persons who appetites would naturally lead them to congregate
at such a place for seasons of conviviality--hence the name Hell Town.

MOUNT PLEASANT METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH - The preliminary meetings that
led to the organization of this society were held in the school-house [Clem’s Run School]
about a mile west of what was then known as the old White Horse Tavern, prior to 1848,
by the Methodist preachers who were then on the circuit that embraced this locality.

The first class-leader was William Mounce, in whose class were the following members: Mary
Ann Mounce, Abigail Fisler, Frances A. Campbell, Abigail Campbell, Sophia Bartholomew,
George Groff, Susan Groff, Abigail Simpkins, Elizabeth Simpkins, Thomas Jagard, Ann
Jagard, Martha Ann Mounce, Levi Adkinson, Keziah Adkinson, Keziah Eastlack, Mary
Eastlack, Ann Skinner, Sarah Skinner, Samuel Chester, Mary Chester and Martha Abbott.
[KDS note — these names closely mirror the 1840 census for the Rt. 609 area]

Soon after the class was formed the tavern-keeper at the "White Horse Tavern" became one of
the advocates of the religion, joined the class, gave up the tavern business, and became the
leader of the class. In a few years another school-house was built, for the better
accommodation of the increased population. The new school-house stood on the site now
occupied by the Mount Pleasant Academy, and in it another class was formed, with Richard
Skinner, Sr., as leader. This was made a Sunday afternoon appointment, and in fair weather
the services were held in the beautiful grove surrounding the school-house.

[KDS notation — maybe a little mix-up in this history. The Mount Pleasant Academy, built 1855,
is where church classes were moved to from the Clem’s Run School and the school where
Richard Skinner would probably have served as church class leader. The later school house
that was built on the same site was the Richwood Academy, built 1870. Church classes
would not have been held there as the nearby Methodist Church, built 1860, would now
have been the location of church activities.]

In 1860 a new Methodist Church edifice was built, on a site midway between the two school-
houses, and near the site of the old White Horse Tavern, the corner-stone being laid by Rev.
S.Y. Monroe, in 1860, and the church dedicated by Bishop Scott, in February 1861. His text
was the 137th Psalm, fifth and sixth verses.

The preachers who have served this people while occupying the schoolhouses were as follows:
1848-49, N. Edwards and B. Andrews; 1850, N. Edwards and A. Gearheart; 1851, A.
Gearhart and D. Reed; 1852, James White and Levi Rhodes; 1853, C.W. Heisley and J.C.
Summerill; 1858-59, H.S. Norris and J.P. Connelly; 1860, E. Waters and A. Atwood.
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Since the building of the church the following have been pastors at this, in connection with
other places: 1863, Samuel F. Wheeler; 1865, James Vincent; 1867, N. Edwards, James F.
Morrell, Thomas Wilson, Calvin Eastlack, Samuel Hudson, J.B. Stewart. For 1883 the
society is supplied by Rev. William Tomlin, a local preacher. Membership in 1882, forty-
one. Value of church property, three thousand dollars. Officiary for 1882: Local Preacher,
C.C. Souder; Exhorter, Charles Jenkins; Class-Leaders, William E. Heritage, Henry Jackson
and Charles Jenkins; Stewards, C. C. Sonder, H.L. Jackson, and E.C. Heritage; Trustees:
E.C. Heritage, Joseph D. Carr, N.J. Justice, Robert McKeighan, and William E. Heritage.
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Exhibit 6

Richwood Methodist Church

Richwood Methodist Church
Elmer Road, Harrison Twp, NJ
(Photo courtesy of Wikipedia.org)

History of the Richwood Methodist Church,
http://www.njtownguide.com/index.html:

On May 22, 1860, the Mount Pleasant Methodist Episcopal Church was organized in a little
community once called White Horse (1825), Campbell’s Cross Roads, Mount Pleasant (1840),
Five Points (1879), Richwood (1889) and “Hell Town.” Preliminary meetings were held at
Clem’s Run School House, located a mile south of the White Horse Tavern, which stood on the
site of the present recreation field. Following this, the present Richwood Academy, a school
house at the time, was used as a church. In fair weather, church meetings were held outside in the
grove of trees. During a meeting on June 19, 1860, a formal resolution was passed to build a
new church.

KDS note — The Richwood Academy was built in 1870, ten years after the building of the nearby
church. It would not have been used for church classes. The school that was used for church
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classes prior to the building of the church was first, the Clem’s Run School House, and then, the
Mount Pleasant School House, built in 1855 and a predecessor of the Richwood Academy.
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Exhibit 7

1990 Survey of the Methodist Cemetery, Glassboro, NJ; from a document on file at
the Glou. Co. Hist. Society, per notes of cousin Virginia Minotty:

The cemetery includes the gravestones of Rev. Richard Skinner (“Rev. Richard Skinner
Died Mar. 12th 1882 Age 84 yr's 7 mos™) and wife Mary Skinner (*Mary Wife of
Rev. Richard Skinner Died Oct. 8th 1882 - Aged 73 years")

Exhibit 8
Conversation with Marion Smith (1902 — 2004) on 14 May 1995:

Marion Smith was a great/great-granddaughter of Richard Skinner - -
Marion Smith* Ursula Thoman®, Harry Skinner?, Richard Jr."

Marion Smith called Richard Skinner a "rural™ preacher who preached at multiple locations.
Marion's Mother, Ursula, told her that he once preached at a Methodist church on the right-
hand side of a road leading from Mt. Royal to Woodbury.
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Exhibit 9 - Deed Records [thanks to familysearch.org]

Lands and Property Purchased by Richard Skinner Sr. [Grantee]:

Grantor [Seller] Grantee Deed Book #, Deed Deed
(Buyer) Page # Signed Date File Date
With County

FamilySearch Index, Pg 639 (entries for Richard Skinner as Grantee):

Benjamin Wilkins | R. Skinner Sr. | H2, 88 | 2/13/1821 | 2/13/1821
The sale of the land of Richard’s father by Gloucester County Sheriff Benjamin Wilkins.
David Wolf & wife | R.SkinnerSr. | M2,84 | 1/20/24 |  3/1/24

35 acres, $210, Greenwich Twp. Beginning at a corner in line of Samuel Shivers (1) then along
the line N31degW 40 chains to a corner of Shivers and late Robert Zane’s land (2) N83degE 11
chains to a corner (3) S26degE 37 chain/30links to a corner (4) S65degW 6 chains/50 links to
beginning. Purchased by Wolf from M Serran 29 Sep 1817.

John Norton & wife | R. Skinner Sr. | P2, 27 1/10/25 1/17/25
55 acres, $150, Franklin Twp. Beginning at a corner of Jesse Smith & others (1) S47degE 10
chains 50 links to a corner of Robert Johnson (2) E 33 chains 50 links to a dead pine (3)
N40deg30’W 35 chains 50 links down line of late Jacob Huns? to a stake (4) along Smiths line
S43degW 76 chains to beginning. Purchased by Norton from Simon Grover 11 Jan 1823.

Isaac Browning | R. Skinner Sr. | T2, 204 2/8/25 | 1/17/25
20 acres, $145, Greenwich Twp.
Lot A (west side of Rt. 609) — 13 acres & four porches, beginning at Landing Road (1) running
along Landing Road (Rt. 609) N11degE 16 chains 25 links to Gannette Groffs line (2)
N79.5degW 9 chains 83 links to a corner (3) S30’W 15 chains 68 links to a sapling (4) N77.5degE
7 chains to beginning.
Lot B — 7 acres; beginning at a black oak (1) N79.5degW 7 chains 25 links to the Landing Road
(2) crossing the road to a stone corner at Groffs land (3) $79.5degE 9 chains 25 links to corner
(4) N7.5degW 9 chains 25 links to the beginning.

James Lippincott & wife | R. Skinner Sr. | F3, 299 | 5/23/32 |  10/9/32
33 and 58/100 acres, $125, Greenwich Twp. Beginning on Rt. 322 at a corner to Joseph Ogden
(1) along his line S21degE 47 chains to a post in Moffets line (2) along his line N49deg15’W 15
chains to Skinners other land (3) along Skinners line N24degW 33 chain 20 links to a corner of
his land (4) continuing along Skinners land N2degE 6 chain 45 links to Rt. 322 (5) along road
S68degE 8 chains to beginning. Purchased by Lippincott from Wm Sharp 4 Sep 1826.

Index, Pg 640:

Jacob Swope & wife | R.SkinnerSr. | G3,227 | 12/17/33 |  3/19/33
7 acres, $100, Greenwich Twp. Two Lots. Lot (A) Starting at a Black Oak formerly a corner to
John Madara (1)along that land S63degE 9 chains 50 links (2) by Neal Lafferty’s land N52degE 8
chains to a stake in the late Robert Moffett’s land (3) by the same N74degW 14 chains (4) S
18degW 5 chains 15 links to beginning. 6 acres, 3 roads, 13 porches.
Lot (B) — beginning at a pine in said Madara’s line (1) S63deg30’E 5 chains 69 links to a corner in
that line (2) N10deg30’W 5 chains 69 links to a corner in the meadow (3) S51deg30’W 5 chains
34 links to beginning. One acre, one road, 9 porches.
Land, meadow and upland of both lots conveyed to Swope by Thomas Carpenter 1828.
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James Matlock & wife | R.SkinnerSr. | H3,530 |  2/15/34 |  2/15/34
48/100 acre, $75, Greenwich Twp. Beginning on Barnsboro/Carpenters Landing Rd at a corner
to Joseph Akins (1) on the road $12.5degW 133.25ft to a corner (2) S79degW one chain 92 links
to a corner in line of Thomas Carpenter (3) N31degW 2 chains 10 links to a corner of Akins lot
(4) by the same N79degkE 2 chains 64 links to beginning. Conveyed to Matlock from Archibald
Moffett 1 Aug 1833.

Jonas Chew & wife | R.SkinnerSr. | N3,288 | 7/13/35 |  7/17/35
16/100 acre, $200, Carpenters Landing, Greenwich Twp. House & lot. Beginning on Landing
Road (Rt. 609) at corner to Joseph Akins (1) ‘up’ the road S12deg30’E 40 ft. to a corner to Parks
(2) S79degW 65 links to Carpenters line (4) along his line N30degW 65 links to a corner of Akins
(5) N79degE 2 chains 80 links to beginning. Same house and lot as sold by Skinner to Jonas 24
Feb 1834.

Jesse Chew & wife plus R. Skinner Sr. V3, 23 12/15/38 3/4/39
Joseph Gill
The Cabin Run Tract on the west side of Rt. 667

Richard Howell and Thomas R. Skinner Sr. W3, 433 3/18/40 4/20/40
Carpenter,[ atty for James &
Samuel Carpenter]
One & 54/100 acres, $250, Franklin Twp. Beginning at a corner (1) S4deg30’E 5 chains 25 links
to a corner (2) N85deg30’E 2 chains to corner (3) N4deg30”W 2 chains 50 links to corner (4)
N85deg30’E 4 chains to corner of Wm Beckett (5) N16deg30’W one chain 16 links to corner (6)
by the old Glasshouse lot N83degW 5 chains 88 links to beginning.

Joseph Cooper & wife | R. Skinner Sr. | H4, 73 | 12/26/46 | 2/8/47
167 1/2 acre, $750, Harrison Twp. The land runs from Rt. 609 to Rt. 667 at the southern border
of Harrison Twp. Beginning at a stone in the public road leading from Union Meeting House to
Barnsborough [Rt. 667], corner to Lawrence Cake in the line of Samuel Langley’s land and also
on the Franklin/Harrison Twp. line (1) along Cake’s line S75deg30’W 27 chains 20 links to the
line of Wood’s land and corner to Cake (2) along Wood’s line N4deg20’E 26 chains 25 links
crossing swamps to a corner (3) along Shute’s and Campbell’s line N29degW 73 chains 67 links
to a stake in middle of the road leading from Barnsborough to Pittstown [Rt. 609], corner to
Josiah Beckett and Frances A. Campbell and Murphy’s land (4) along road N13deg30’E ____
chains 50 links to a corner to James Carr’s lot (5) by Carr’s line N74deg30’E 8 chains 69 links to
a corner agreed upon between Skinner and the heirs of Jacob French dec’d (6) along Skinner’s
line and Moffett’s line S28degE 102 chains 14 links to the Unionville to Barnsborough road in
Moffett’s line (7) along road S14deg30’E 5 chains 63 links to beginning. This land one of the
tracts that Cooper purchased from the heirs of Jacob French 20 Dec1846.

Part of this land leased to Stephen & Jonathan Murphy for the purpose of allowing Lawrence
Cake, William French, Joseph Cooper and the Murphys to cut timber — the lease to continue
under Skinner’s ownership. Skinner gifted some of this land to Richard Skinner Jr. in 1849 as a
wedding gift and some to Brazilla Abbott in 1849. Brazilla sold it back to Skinner in 1854 and
Skinner added some adjoining land to it in 1858 that he purchased of Benjamin Wilson. The
executors of Skinner’s estate sold a small part of this land to Charles Williamson in 1875 and a
larger tract to Henry Albright in 1886.
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John Smallwood & wife | R.SkinnerSr. | H4,135 | 3/9/47 |  3/9/47
13 28/100 acre, $105, Harrison Twp. Beginning at a corner to John Darling (1) by the same
N75deg30’W 3 chains 80 links to middle of public road leading to French’s Mill (2) along road
S60deg30’W 13 chains 95 links to a corner in Moore’s line (3) by the same S88deg30’'W 2
chains 50 links to a corner of Jonathan Heritage’s lot (4) by the same N2degW 12 chains 85
links to a stump (5) S77deg45’E 18 chains 80 links to a stake corner in the line of Skinner (6)
S20degE 3 chains 25 links to beginning. Purchased by John Smallwood from David Morgan
19Sep1842, and also part of the so called Carter track formerly owned by John Carter dec’d.

Jacob Swope & wife | R.SkinnerSr. | C4,347 | 8/17/43 | 12/15/43
7 acre, $1000, Glassboro. Fronting on Main St & Academy Streets - probably all of the land
between today’s Main, Academy, College & New Streets, but south of Richard Stanger’s land
along New Street. Beginning at a stone, formerly a corner in Valentino Focer’s lot in late
Archibald Moffett’s line, and now a corner to Lewis Perney’s lot in Lewis Campbell’s minors
line, said stone on the west edge of Main St. or Union Road in Glassborough opposite the NW
corner of late Levi Campbell’s kitchen (1) along line of Campbell’s lot and now Thomas
Whitney’s Glasshouse lot to the centre of the new public road leading by the School House to
Leonard Fisler’s Mill [Academy St.] (2) along road NE by the School House to the line of Daniel
Luz’s lot (3) along the line of Richard Stanger’s lot to the middle of Main St. (4) along road to
beginning. Part of the land Swope purchased from estate of Thomas Heston 7 Dec 1808.

Frances Campbell | R.SkinnerSr. | K4,256 |  4/21/49 |  6/18/49
2 acre, $10, Harrison Twp. Result of a renegotiation of land boundaries that also gave neighbor
Francis Campbell an additional lot earlier in the day from Skinner. Beginning at a corner
agreed upon by the party’s earlier in the day to settle a dispute in lay of lines, said stone stands
NW of the public road leading from Campbell’s house and store to Horners Saw Mill nearly
opposite an old road which puts in from where the old White Horse Tavern formerly stood,
about 2 chains from end of said old road which puts into said public road (1) N78degl5'W 14
chains 61 links to the corner of Campbell’s lot got of Skinner this day (2) S45’E one chain 23
links (3) S29?E 15 chains 10 inks (4) N34’W 15 chains 28 links to corner to James Eastlack’s land
(5) SOneDeg30’W 14 chains 30 links to the beginning. Purchased by Campbell from John Ford
21Junl1847.

Brazilla Abbott & wife | R. Skinner Sr. | Q4,174 | 4/17/54 | 7/31/54
85 acre, $52400, (A) 85 acres + (B) 6 & 96/100 acres. Lot (A) — Beginning at a stake in the public
road leading from the Union Meetinghouse to Barnsboro (Rt.667), a corner to Cakes and in the
line of Samuel Langley (1) S75deg30”W 27 chains 20 links to Wood's line (2) N4deg20’E 26
chains 25 links (3) N29degW 21 chains 40 links (4) N62degE 14 chains 30 links to Moffett’s line
(5) S28degE 44 chains 47 links to the middles of said road (6) S14deg30’E 5 chains 63 links to
beginning. Conveyed to Martha Abbott from father Skinner on 17Jun1849.
Lot (B) — beginning at a stake in said road and (6") corner above (1) N14deg30’W 24 chains to a
stone in the road (2) S75deg30’W 5 chains 80 links to the line of Abbott’s other land described
above (3) S28degl10’E 24 chains 57 links to beginning. Purchased by Abbott from John A. Biddle
Moffett? 4May1852.
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Benjamin Wilson | R. Skinner Sr. | ?,428 . 7/21/58 | 7/21/58
40 & 90/100 acres, $613.50, Harrison Twp. Beginning at a post in the southerly edge of the
Clem’s Run Swamp in the line of the late French’s land now a corner to Lawrence Cake, late
French’s land, and also a corner to Benjamin Wilson’s land, of which this is part of same lands
Wilson purchased of Joseph Wood 18Nov1854 (1) along Wilson’s line of the balance of said
tract N23degl0’W 11 chains 45 links to a corner near Clem’s Run (2) down said branch
S79degW 15 chains 81 links to a corner in the swamp (3) still along Wilson's line crossing the
swamp N13deg50’W 12 chains 80 links (4) part by land of the late Joseph Shute now Carter’s
land N62deg15’E 23 chains to a corner of Carter in the line of said late Jacob French’s land now
belonging to Skinner (5) along Skinner’s line S28degl13’E 9 chains 53 links to a corner of Skinner
(6) along Skinner’s line S4deg50’W 22 chains 50 links to beginning. This transaction involves
land Wilson purchased of Joseph Wood in 1854 (P4/556).

Jonathan Murphy | R.SkinnerSr. | $4,313 |  8/29/56 |  9/9/56
2.5/100 acre, 54 cents, Harrison Twp. Beginning at the third corner of a lot purchased this day
by Jonathan Murphy from Richard Skinner Sr. & Jr. (1) N74deg50’W one chain 3 links to center
of Barnsboro Pittstown Turnpike (2) along said road N13deg45’E 25 links to the corner of
Francis A. Campbell’s land (3) along his line S74deg50’E one chain (4) S 1deg30’ E 20 links along
said Skinner’s other land to beginning. All part of a larger tract previously purchased by
Murphy.

Index Pg 641:

Estate of Isaac Dermit | R.SkinnerSr. | U4,245 |  8/12/34 |  3/22/58
60/100 acre, $5.00, Greenwich Twp. Beginning at a corner of Skinner’s other land in the line of
Frances Campbell Sr. (1) along Skinner’s land N2deg45’E 8 chains to middle of the public road
leading from Barnsboro to the late White Horse Tavern (Rt. 609), (2) along road $S13deg30'W 7
chains 90 links to a corner in now Campbell’s line (3) along his line S77degE one chain 53 links
to beginning. Land & road.

Joseph Thomas & wife | R.SkinnerSr. |  D5,107 | 2/21/66 |  4/4/66
19 % acres, one dollar, Mantua Twp, two lots.
Lot (A) - Beginning in the middle of the public road from Glassboro to Barnsboro standing one
chain 20 links NW of the middle of the new road leading from the White Horse Tavern to
Bethel (Lambs Road?), (1) crossing the first road obliquely N61.75degE 20 chains 25 links to a
stake in the watercourse of a branch (2) “up said watercourse the several courses thereof a
straight course” S20degkE 4 chains to a stake in said watercourses (3) S16degW 13 chains 40
links to middle of first road (4) then along the road N73deg50’W one chain 57 links to a stake
(5) then still along the road N64deg25’W 15 chains 45 links to beginning. 15 1/2 acres.
Lot (B) — second lot joins the first and begins at a stake on the south side of the watercourse of
the Chestnut Branch at a corner to William Beckett and in the line of Joseph Iszard (1) along
Beckett's land S62degW 16 chains 52 links to the middle of the road from Glassboro to late
Burson’s Mill (2) along middle of road N43deg30’E 15 chains 75 links to a stake near the bridge
over said Branch (3) up the same the several courses to beginning. 3 & 92/100 acres of land
and swamp.
Same premises that Joseph Duffield conveyed to Martha Thomas 22Jan1858.
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RSjr & wife | R.SkinnerSr. | R5,556 | 11/26/74 |  5/3/75
49 78/100 acres, $3000, Harrison Twp. Fronting on Rt. 609. Beginning at a corner in centre of
public road leading from Barnsboro to Pittstown [Rt. 609] and corner to William Beckett’s farm
(1) S28deg30’E 24 chains 52 links to corner of Skinner Senior’s land standing in the main run of
a small branch called Clems Run (2) N51deg30’E 16 chains 34 links to a corner of Skinner in a
ditch (3) along line of Skinner N14degW 30 chains 52 links to a corner in Charles Souder’s line
(4) S77deg33’W 9 chains 28 links to a stake in Jonathan Murphy’s line (5) S13deg30’W 2 chains
70 links to a corner in Murphy’s line (6) S4degE 3 chains 84 links to a corner of James Carr’s
land (7) S76deg30’W 5 chains 67 links to a corner in the middle of the Barnsboro/Pittstown
Road (8) S14degW 8 chains 86 links to the beginning. The larger part of the same premises
that Skinner conveyed to Jr. [in 1849].

Charles Souder | R.SkinnerSr., |  S5,440 | 11/26/75 | 11/30/75
Clayton Twp ' 5 5

40 47/100 acre, $100, Harrison Twp.
This transaction involves land originally sold to Souder by Skinner 1Dec1864. Reference the
1864 deed for a detailed description of the land location that is repeated verbatim in this deed,
but not repeated here on this page.
Land location - this land was located on the south side of Rt. 322 and extended all the way
from Rt. 609 to Rt. 667. The land was north of two tracts of Richard Skinner Junior - one tract
fronting on Rt. 609 and a second tract that extended the remainder of the way to Rt. 667.
This 1875 transaction is a voluntary give-back of land from Souder to Skinner to be held by
Skinner as security for two delinquent mortgages that Skinner had extended to Souder —one
for $5000 and one for $1200. The mortgages related to the original sale of land to Souder in
1864 and for other “unspecified land transactions”.

Richard Souder | R.Skinner, Sr., | 15,151 | 2/12/1876 | 2/15/1876
Clayton Twp ' 5 5

40 47/100 acre, S1, Harrison Twp.
This is another transaction relating to delinquent mortgages on land sold by Skinner to Charles
Souder in 1864, and given back to Skinner in 1875 (see previous deed above). Charles Souder
apparently conveyed the mortgaged land to Richard Souder in return for Richard providing him
with a new mortgage dated 18 Oct 1875. Richard Souder agreed to relinquish this mortgaged
land to Skinner and to hold on to other unspecified mortgaged lands as security for the money
remaining due by Charles to Skinner. Can’t say | fully understand this in detail.
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Land and Property Sold By Richard Skinner Sr. [Grantor], a work in progress:

Grantor [Seller] Grantee Deed Book Deed Deed
(Buyer) #, Page # Signed Date Filing Date
With County

FamilySearch Index, Pg 365 (entries for Richard Skinner as Grantor):

R. Skinner, Sr. | Nathan Thompson | G2,404 | 9/30/1822 | 10/12/1822
217 acres, $2000, Greenwich Twp. This transaction consists of the portion of the land located at
Pitman Grove, near Alcyon Lake, that Richard purchased at the Sheriff’s sale in 1821. Lot (A) - 200
acres bounding on the Chestnut Branch and consisting of the land bequeathed to John Skinner by
Thomas Tabor and called Smith’s Old Place. Lot (B) - 17 acres, land that John Skinner purchased of
Isaac Terrapin 25Sep1789.

R. Skinner, Sr. | John Richards & wife | x2,132 | 2/25/28 | 3/17/29
5 acres, $500, Greenwich Twp. This transaction involves land known as the White Horse tavern lot
that straddles Rt. 609 and is directly south of land purchased by Skinner from the estate of Isaac
Browning in 1825 and west of other lands of Skinner. Beginning at a stone in the line of Skinner,
formerly Isaac Browning (1) S76deg30’E 7 chains 15 links to a corner (2) along Skinner’s other land
S11degl15’W 8 chains 93 links to corner (3) by Skinners other land N6deg30’W 9 chains 50 links to
beginning. This lot part of the land Skinner purchased at the Sheriff’s sale of his father’s land in
1821. Since this lot sits partly on the west side of Rt. 609, this is the first indication that some small
portion of the land originally purchased by Richard in 1821 and previously belonging to his father sat
west of Rt. 609.

Index, Pg 366:

R. Skinner, Sr. Jonas Chew K3, 113 2/24/34 4/17/34
R. Skinner, Sr. Joseph Akins P3, 125 9/23/35 1/7/36
R. Skinner, Sr. Patrick Flanagan T3, 375 2/20/35 8/1/38
R. Skinner, Sr. Richard Stanger 267 2/1/43 2/19/43
Index, Pg 368:

R. Skinner, Sr. Samuel Bartholomew F4, 466 11/1/44 11/7/45
R. Skinner, Sr. Isaac Sharpe G4, 288 2/14/46 4/14/46
R. Skinner, Sr. Edward Lutz H4, 162 3/22/47 3/23/47

1 acre, $200, Glassboro, On Fislers Saw Mill Rd; Adjoining Whitney Glasshouse & lands of RS &
James Lock (also purchased from RS); Originally purchased by RS 17 Aug 1843

R. Skinner, Sr. James Locke H4, 196 3/8/47 4/2/47
R. Skinner, Sr. James Locke 14, 164 5/22/47 3/13/48
R. Skinner, Sr. Francis A. Campbell 14, 349 12/13/47 6/15/48
R. Skinner, Sr. Amos Gardiner 14, 502 8/21/48 9/6/48
R. Skinner, Sr. Amos Park 14, 890 2/20/35 1/2/45
R. Skinner, Sr. Jeptha Hampton 14, 641 11/16/31 2/13/49
R. Skinner, Sr. Samuel & Thomas Whitney K4, 139 4/28/48 2/13/49
R. Skinner, Sr. Samuel Chester Jr. K4, 222 4/23/49 5/9/49
R. Skinner, Sr. Francis A. Campbell K4, 222 4/21/49 5/22/49
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R. Skinner, Sr. | Nathan T. Skinner | k4,266 | 6/16/49 |  7/4/49
83 acre, $664, Greenwich Twp; On north side of old road at a corner to William Madara (late
Thomas Tabor) and corner to Carpenter; Adjoining Carpenter, David Christian and running to the
SW up a long stretch of the Cabin Run, then running NW back to the road. Same tract purchased by
RS from Joseph Gill 15Dec1838 plus one other tract purchased from the sheriff’s sale of his father’s
land in 1821.

R. Skinner, Sr. | Martha Abbott | k4,665 | 6/16/49 |  4/30/50
100 acre, $500, Harrison Twp. This land was a wedding gift to Skinner’s daughter Martha Abbott
and was located on the west side of Rt. 667 down at the southern end of Harrison Twp. This land
was later conveyed back to Skinner and was the farm occupied by Skinner and his 4™ wife at the
time of his death in 1882.

Fronting on Rt. 667; Adjoining Lawrence & Theodocia Cakes in the line of Samuel Langley; Adjoining
the Harrison/Franklin Twp. line; Adjoining Joseph Woods, Joseph Shutes, other lands of Skinner,
Moffetts line, corner to Langley. Consists of land & swamp. Purchased by Skinner from Joseph
Cooper 26Dec1846.

R. Skinner, Sr. | Richard Skinner Jr | 14308 | 7/31/49 | 4/18/54
49 78/100 acre, $748, Harrison Twp. Corner on Barnsboro/Pittstown Road (Rt. 609) and corner to
Josiah Beckett and a piece of land Wm Beckett purchased of Frances Campbell (1) along road
N13deg30’E 8 chains 86 links to corner of a lot that Skinner and James Carr “are about dealing for”
(2) along said lot N76degl10’E 5 chains 67 links (3) N3deg30’W 5?chains and 26 links to corner in
Murphy’s line (4) N77degE 10 chains 4 links (5) S14deg30’E 30 chains 52 links to a small ditch (6)
S57degW 16 chains 34 links to outside line of French’s land and in Joseph Shute’s line in the course
of the small branch {Little Clem’s Run stream) (7) along Shute & Beckett’s land N29degW 24 chains
52 links to beginning. The same land and premises on which Skinner Jr. now dwells. Originally a
part of land purchased by Skinner Sr. from Joseph Cooper 12/26/1846 plus a part acquired by
Skinner Sr. in other unnamed purchases. This land later sold by Skinner Jr. back to Skinner Sr. in

1874.
R. Skinner, Sr. James Eastlack L4, 22 12/18/45 5/28/50
R. Skinner, Sr. James Lock N4, 131 5/16/51 5/5/52

72/100 acre, $89.54. Glassboro, west side of Pike Rd (Main St); Adjoining RS, James Lock, Jacob
Stanger; Originally purchased by RS 17 Aug 1843

R. Skinner, Sr. Samuel Whitney 04,7 12/2/52 2/3/53

R. Skinner, Sr. Charles Souder 04, 387 12/31/52 8/8/53
52 86/100 acre, $3330, Harrison Twp.; Fronting on Rt. 322 & Rt. 667; Adjoining lands of Joseph
Ogden, Moffett and Richard Skinner

R. Skinner, Sr. | John Jenkins 04,534 | 10/29/53 | 11/21/53
2 72/100 acre, $47, Harrison Twp; Northeast corner of Rt. 322 and Lambs Road; Adjoining
Thomas Adams to the east and Eastlack to the north.
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R. Skinner, Sr.

Beginning at a corner in the Barnsborough to Union Meeting House Road [Rt. 667] where it
intersects with the Public Road leading from Bethel [Lamb’s Road] and about ten links [6.6 ft.]
South from where the Barnsborough & Mullica Hill Road [Rt. 322] crosses Union Road (1) along
Barnsborough Public Road N14deg15’W 2 chains 3 links [this is up the now discontinued portion
of Rt. 667 that was north of Rt. 322] (2) N76degE 3 chains 18 links to centre of the public road
leading to the Bethel Meeting house[cuts over to Lamb’s Road well north of Rt. 322] (3) along
said road S43degd5’W 3 chains 77 links to beginning. “.....whereas the inhabitants of the said
Neighborhood having formed themselves into a District called Mount Pleasant School District, for
the purpose of School, and at the meeting of the inhabitants of the said district to choose
Trustees for the ensuing year ..... and the Trustees by Order and Request of the said Inhabitants

| Mt. Pleasant School

| 54,77

do hereby purchase the said lot for the use of the School.”

| 6/5/54

| 1/12/56

Index, Pg 369:

R. Skinner, Sr.

Richard Skinner Jr

T4, 308

7/30/49

4/18/57

R. Skinner, Sr.

Francis A. Campbell

U4, 451

8/29/56

9/2/58

14 2/100 acre, $911.30, Harrison Twp; Fronting on Rt. 609; Adjoining Francis Campbell, James
Eastlack, Samuel Chester, Road leading to Harrisonville; Originally purchased by RSsr from estate
of Isaac Browning 8 Feb 1827 (TT/204)

R. Skinner, Sr.

James Eastlack u4, 122 3/22/58

R. Skinner, Sr.

Charles & Sarah Souder
40 47/100 acre, $2200, Harrison Twp.
Summary — The eastern section of this land ends at a corner in the middle of the intersection of
Rt. 322, Rt. 667 and Lamb’s Road. The land extends all the way westward to Rt. 609 south of Rt.
322. AtRt. 609, the land sits north of Murphy’s property. From Murphy’s property to Rt. 667,
the land sits north of two adjacent properties of Richard Skinner Jr.

A stipulation in this deed - “Sarah Souder agrees with her father, the grantor, that she agrees to
take the above land and farm at the value put on same as her share of his whole estate and
never to claim any further share of his Estate. ”

Beginning in the middle of the intersection of the road from Glassboro to Mullica Hill [Rt. 322],
the road from Barnsboro to the Union Meeting House [Rt.667] and the road to Bethel [Lamb’s
Road] (1) along the road to Mullica Hill N63degW 4 chains 88 links to the line of James Eastlack’s
land (2) along his line S71deg10’W 6 chains 35 links to a corner of Eastlack’s and Campbell’s land
(3) along Campbell’s line N74deg35’W 7 chains 38 links to a corner of Campbell’s land (4) along
Campbell’s line S12deg34’W 8 chains 93 links to a stone (5) still by Campbell’s land N75degW 4
chains 38 links to a corner in the middle of the Barnsboro to Pittstown turnpike road (6) along
pike S13deg30’W 25 links to Murphy’s corner (7) along Murphy’s line S75degE 3 chains 83 links
to a corner to Murphy (8) along Murphy’s lineS13deg30’W 6 chains 82 links to a corner to the
land of Richard Skinner Junior (9) along Jr’s line N77deg33’E 9 chains 28 links to a corn to his land
(10) still along his line S14degE 11 chains 15 links to a corner of Junior’s other land (11) along his
line N76degkE 15 chains to the middle of the Union road (12) along the road N14degW 18 chains
90 links to the beginning.

B5, 589 12/1/64 4/13/65

R. Skinner, Sr. et al

Phebe Newburn D5, 428 9/20/66 10/8/66

R. Skinner, Sr.

Charles Jenkins J558 12/25/68 10/30/69
33/100 acre, $80, Harrison Twp; Fronting on Bethel Rd (Lambs Rd); Adjoining Mount Pleasant
School House & Eastlack

R. Skinner, Sr.

Mount Pleasant School 4/19/70 4/22/70

District

K5, 367
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R. Skinner, Sr.

| Frank Skinner

| Q5,255

| 4/11/74

| 4/15/74

62 41/100 acre, $6500, Harrison Twp; Fronting on west side of Rt. 677; Adjoining Charles
Souder, other lands of Frank Skinner, Patrick McGowan, and along a line of Richard Skinner Jr.
that begins at a corner in the middle of Little Clem’s Run stream. Could be a wedding gift to

Frank.
Index, Pg 370:
R. Skinner, Sr. et al | Thomas Stanger et al R5, 527 4/17/75 4/20/75
R. Skinner, Sr. Richard Skinner Jr Y5, 100 12/29/74 1/11/79

51/100 acre, $2000, Glassboro; Fronting on east side of Main St; Adjoining Whitney Glass to the
south and John Stanger to the west.

R. Skinner, Sr.

| Charles Jenkins

| V5,452

| 2/27/75

| 9/4/77

33/100 acre, $80, Harrison Twp; Fronting on Bethel Rd (Lambs Rd), Adjoining Mount Pleasant
School, & land of Eastlack

R. Skinner, Sr. Jacob Reiler 25, 619 12/27/79 12/30/79
R. Skinner, Sr. Sarah Souder 130, 11 7/19/76 7/23/81
R. Skinner, Sr. Joseph Seran et al 131, 209 1/17/82 3/17/82

Richard mentioned here as Attorney for the Seran children whose parents were deceased.

R. Skinner, Sr. | Charles Kuhn | 131,211 | 3/3/82 | 3/17/82

Will of Richard Sr. Rebecca Woolston ? 1882 ?
Woolston sold Charles Lock 131, 657 7/1/82 7/10/82
above Skinner
gift.

Will of Richard, Sr dau. Sarah Souder ? ? ?
Souder resold Hiram Stanger 134, 201 10/1/83 10/5/83
above Skinner
gift.

Estate of Richard Sr | Richard Skinner Jr 136, 433 11/1/83 8/1/84

56/100 acre, $1000, Glassboro; Fronting on east side of Main Street between the Methodist
Parsonage and Hiram Stanger; Part of the 7 acres purchased by RSsr from Jacob Swope 17 Aug

1843
Estate of Richard Sr | George Bailey 3827 1/17/83 12/8/84
Estate of Richard Sr | Charles Williamson 138. 491 3/28/85 4/14/85
Index, Pg 371:
Estate of Richard Sr | Henry Albright | 1417126 | 3/5/86 | 3/5/86

[definitions — one chain = 66 feet; 100 links = one chain]
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Exhibit 9B

Download PropertyPlot.xlsx

“PropertyPlot.xlsx” is a small Excel spreadsheet program that draws property
outlines based upon compass distances and directions inputted by the user.
Requires Word365 for labeling features to work.


PropertyPlot.xlsx
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Exhibit 10
1821 Deed of Land Pertaining to the Sale of John Skinner’s Land by the Gloucester

County Sheriff to Richard Skinner, Richard Having Been the Winning Bidder of his
Father’s Lands; Courtesy of cousin Laurel Damon Steffes, 2000:
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Exhibit 11

Analysis of Land Holdings of Richard Skinner Sr., researched by cousins Bill
Skinner and Laurel Steffes, circa 2001, as hand-written by Bill Skinner in the pages
that follow (with some map coloring from me):
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Richard Skinner purchased his father’s lands at a sheriff’s sale in 1821.
The 200 acres was in Pitman Grove. The 40 plus 100 acres was at Pt. Pleasant [Richwood].

One year later, in 1822, Richard sold all of the Pitman Grove lands to his brother-in-law Capt.
Nathan Thompson.
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More On the 200 plus Acres at Pitman Grove:
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The 200 plus Acres at Pitman Grove (continued)
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Closer Look at the 100 Acre Parcel at Richwood:

2 Fafﬂlﬂ‘/ /%2— /82/ f/rwz-PF; safe of Tobn Skrnnerk
Jands trag /00 acres” ae(iorur«; Fte fands of
 frehiba/d AofFatt David Welfe auct W i1/ram -.’,"4?’7.‘
aud ofters /n Creeawiclh Tep

= Lw’} exa mr&q,; where fhe Pavid Wolfe [ande eere
) Part ofa wer/‘yayd pecoveed for 19 acres of [and
pqra/m.ud é), ptickae/ Zarmner frem David tolfe l/////8/8
| Falks abeet a bowndary ofake o Clewis Rusw awnol
_ borderisy Sha [avds of Smivemed [reuch ——
Exminatron of a moedern pimap shews C/-ew.r' ARun crosves
| the R 609 R/c4w¢oa’7(v Efvenr Bod /v Fodoy s Harrison Zap
,,,,(ﬂ'f read wa.r ca//&d /aarf of 7”1!4 E///.r' ) RA whore
[ f crosses CfemsRun /n FRa eaw/y /800,.», and Flrr faxd
wze parf of GFritnwicl Tewp ,4 74 ear/; /800.:‘.)
z) Parf of a wortyape fromm Toriak fecketf and bfls wite
David WelR 3/14/1818 For 230 acres of [andl o Gean-
wich Tip soys fhe [ands bovdorsd Savnue! Freachs
|and amd Fronc's #. Campbelli favd , Part of f#e
boundary was a /Sae Fhat van N 89 °E (F4att 89 Casi
of Ffrwe NMortt — afmost ofirects 57;7‘) 4S charers or
2970 Fo a shake )7 The vroad [eadlring Fe E/70s
Ml Fhew alony Fhr sald road NIE (Fhe Rickumod
fo Eluer Rl faaﬁy rune N Exst of Frue Novrth — bhavee A
was fhz o/d voad fo ENlrr Mf//) Yp chamrs or 2640 £E fo
a steke /'v: tae pyiddle of Fhe poad Lrom which The
boun/’vrf lrae Furas awed puus 31° West of Srwe NorFh,
THhls David Welte [and was on s West Fedle of 7[oa/a7_'r

R 60‘7 the White Horse Toera (Uor ow The EasF sicle
of 7‘41 Samre roao( (opposste %pﬂ»«fﬂ&e%/s/ dhu»ch)
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100 Acre Parcel (continued):

| The 5 acve White fforse Tavern Jol- war Eas? of

 fodays Rf: 605 Richweed Fo Lfmer RX (fhe ofd EN/s

N RA) almes? ArecH across Fewm Foodeyl
- Rlehwroodl Iﬂt/éo:/r.’r-/ Church ard che*‘-ﬂ . Whta
_:f was seol/d 5y R/"‘ard fk/hﬂ-u- e 828 s was

| bounded o3 oF ¥ sides by Richord SKkiwnerh oFten
 auds . Sinee fhe white Hursa Taveon [oF war
- bougut ﬁ/ Richavd Sk/nnsze /n Fhe /82/ sheviFEL
. seke of bis Lafterk pr-e,z_u_%y and Fhis 182/
- sher; )C/‘A{_m.fa/& s5  Fte ek kqown s sfa mee wé,emc

Ricthawel Skinmer purchared [and o Fhe WhiSe Horse

Tavers /of as prebably swurrewwded by anetirer

95 acres " of (@nd purchased at Phal peime forre sn
 fhe nelghborhooed of fha [fowds oweed by Hrohibald
o ffatt, David Wolfe, amd Wilkiam Sharp.
Tha /a:«o( bowunded 4y %pday; Richwood—floner RA
(kA C0%) | Fhe mullica il +o Glarsbore Rt (Rf322), fhe
_ @m/rww( Acra RA (RECC7) , and Withiamson RA. contaras
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Mrclibatel 7o fFafF, Dacid Wolfe, ad Wiiliam STharp mics
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few ©ftiin wovds cas ke M}ﬁ"’j'UI}Mr
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100 Acre Parcel (continued):
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Closer Look at the 40 acre Parcel at Richwood:

P notter part of The )82 sheriffh sate of
Johun Skinnerls fands was "40 acves” aidjornsng fandy
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L¢7‘)(' Exenrie w/tu—l_ -/”uw_:. /a—ua/r were )
s Oa 6ﬁ4//8/3 George Motffatt sold 30 acmovc/md oy 7
| Breewwich Tap o Williarm Sharp (Book DD,peyeszr?#-sz
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_ of 34 chaing224t FF) plas Archibald #o St fand plus
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ST [l e a/moﬂ‘f&-a Nortte 7(0 a parf/n ﬂr-mrln/k a7c7‘1<& ;
g 'paé/lc roadd /La/rnj FProsm PMullica 51 F~ ﬁ/o.r.réorouvlv (‘7‘0147
| BA323) Fhem alovg Fhe ot of Fhe /A voad S E8°E

_ (frwonot Flassbors) 8 charns or $28" Fo anotter posfii fle

s /dlle of fhe roak owd Then Sha boundovy /the Surmed
oA went 21° East of "TeweSoutt — Fhus Ftis Jaml

wod e She South sidle of Fedays R 322 which puns
West ;o Eashr, :
> f/X?‘y ~foern Qcres o'fﬁ’céﬂ*“(ﬂ’/"f'ﬁdﬁ" /auds wene J'a// ‘o a
sheri FFh sale 6/2/r82¢ (qu,é R, page 5‘39-—:33), This
(aved (calles FHe fqéflr,euM,ai«opugﬁ) was [ater puveheased
5', Vzer'céamo/ I/ér;»nf:,«- who [aker sold +K A Loe Somm Natbas 7.
ffé(’"m a/oui cwitt 19 acres of [and Rreliavel Jauylr)‘ Preowe fhe
sheri Ffh safe of his Latharls fewd Fo (827, Thirky —Fve of
Fheae ¢4 acres Hovaurly swmsd by Richavel Moffett ape part
of Leorge Reuters favm om the west side of Hu Richweet —fy,
RL., Cabrn Py, /5 vewry [7He Hle shreace op ditel Fhat buas
ru Yo (—empficr /rv;/v) Cleonr ;Qqn_
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40 Acre Parcel (continued):

T# [fooks as /L Tohu Skraners 40 acres near fhe ,
Jauds of George Moffatf and Aichovd spoffatf were

_ within fhe avea ewclosed by foday: Richweod-E/vmer
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The Cabin Run Tract on the West Side of Rt. 667:

.‘)’)X/y’ﬁm- acres of Rrchorel o ffaltls [ands wene sel/d co a
sheri Ffh sale 6/2/082¢ (Book Q®, pase S34-538), This
(aud (calles #he Cabry ,euM,o;-,,m»f,) was [ater purchased
57 .RI'C4¢L*-¢>’ ._J_ﬁ_r;—pmz_‘_ who [ater sold i, Ao Lole Som Neatbae 7,

Skinner a‘/cuf witl 19 acires of [and Rrchavel bougb/ Prew fhe
sheri Bfh safe of his fattors [evd dn 182/, Thirky—trve of
Fleace 64 acres Forauity swid by Richavel Motlatt ape part
of Feoroe Leuters favur on the west side of Heo Richeveeel —4y,

ﬁd(. C‘a-/”r" ;()cn-, z:r a V.ewf //%L 5‘/"‘4&“ o c:/:M /7/’47‘ Foys

ra Fo (fﬂ-fpﬁlﬂ" eE e e R,

| The G acre Cabin Run preoperly winf Hromw Rebhave
 Moffatt Fo Loursra K. Paxl (o 1826) Fo Nafhace
 Thorpser (2/4)1828) 1o Charls . & fo Richavs

| Skivrwsr Fo  Naftan 7. Skinaer (i 1849).
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Cabin Run Tract (continued):

Regarding 64 acres of land in Greenwich Twp. (later Mantua Twp.-Pitman Grove area) purchased
by Rev. Richard Skinner (1797-1882) from Joseph C. Gill on January 18, 1838 for $320 as
recorded in Gloucester County Clerk's Office Deed Book V3, pages 23 and 24 March 4, 1839.

Beginning at an old black oak corner to iands late Thomas Tabers standing on the Northern side of
an old road leading from Tomlin's Mill to Ellis Mill then along said road North sixty nine degrees
East nineteen chains and twenty links...to a small branch (of a creek) that empties into Cabin
Run...(goes on to complete the path of the boundary back to the old black oak tree at the
beginning)...containing sixty four acres..and is commonly called the Cabin Run Tract and is a part
of the premises that Jesse Smith late Sherrif sold as the property of Nathan Thomson and
conveyed to the said Joseph C. Gill deed dated Nov.1st 1834...and which said N. Thomson
purchased from Louisa H. Paul per deed Dec.4th 1828 recorded in Book XX, page 38 together
with all the buildings, improvements, etc.

This land was later sold along with another 19 acres by the same Richard Skinner (1797-1882) to
his son Nathan T. Skinner on June 16, 1849 for a sum of $664 as recorded in Book K4, page 266.
All of this land was in Greenwich Twp. (later Mantua Twp.) with the 83 acres described as
follows: Beginning at a stone set in place of an old black oak standing on the northerly side of an
old road corner to William Madara (deceased) late Thomas Tabers land and Carpenter's land
hence along Carpenter's line..to the corner of Daniel Christian's lot and border to Carpenter's
land... along Christian's land... to Cabin Run... along the branches of the creek...then back to the
stone first described as the place of beginning... containing eighty three acres of land more or
less... it being the same tract of land purchased by Richard Skinner of Joseph C. Gill on Dec.16th
1838 (as recorded in Book V3, pages 23 and 24) plus one other tract or piece of land the said
Richard Skinner purchased of Benjamin Wilkins, Sheriff of the County of Gloucester, by deed
dated Feb. 13th 1821 (these additional 19 acres were part of the sheriff's sale of 340 acres of land
belonging to John Skinner, father of Richard Skinner, recorded in Book HH, page 88). Richard
Skinner bought the 340 acres Feb. 13, 1821 and sold most of this land to his brother-in-law
Nathan Thomson (Thompson) in 1822.
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Cabin Run Tract (continued):

Comments of cousin Virginia Minotty Concerning DEED from JOSEPH C. GILL to
RICHARD SKINNER, copied from the files of VEM:

This is the Rev. Richard Skinner, b. July 11, 1797, d. Mar. 12, 1882 of Richwood, N.J. The
Deed is for the homestead farm on the Richwood-Aura Road. Now, (1965), 32 acres of
which are the property of George Reutter. George Reutter acquired this farm from his father.
The Cabin Run mentioned in the Deed is a ditch running into Clem's Run (Clement's Run)
on the west side of the farm house.

This Richwood-Aura Road formerly cut across route 322 next to the Richwood Academy and
came out on the Barnsboro-Richwood Road. The section from route 322 to the Barnsboro-

Rlchwood Road has been ellmlnated Ilihls—es—the#!emeetead—peopeﬁy—of—wh%h—\]ehn-R—
peb#mhed—m—ﬂee@lasebem—%%e#pnee—dwaeeembe%%l— The old Stone House also

mentioned in this article was on the William Rusling Skinner farm (1863-1953) across from
the now (1965) George Reutter farm. The large pine tree was probably on the George
Reutter farm as there is still a large pine tree there which has been partly cut down. William
R. Skinner, Jr. (1900-1967), of Dennisville, N. J. told me that they used the old Stone house
to store sweet potatoes. It was torn down when the railroad bed was put in. The railroad has
since been removed, but you can still see where it was.

NATHAN THOMSON (THOMPSON) mentioned in the Deed was Capt. Nathan Thomson of
Philadelphia, Pa., who married MARTHA SKINNER, (1792-1854), sister to Rev. Richard
Skinner (See Glo. Co. Marriages Records, by H. Stanley Craig, p. 188)

[end]



